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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is
available on the Company’s website at www.cocoon.holdings (the
“Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented
to receive the corporate communications of the Company (the
“Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website and who
for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the
annual report posted on the Company Website will promptly upon
request be sent the annual report in printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means
of receipt (either in printed form or via the Company Website)
and/or language(s) (either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report
in printed form, and/or to change their choice of the means of
receipt and/or language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice
in writing to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong or by sending an email to the branch share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong at cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive printed copy of the
Corporate Communications in either English or Chinese version
will receive both English and Chinese versions of this annual
report since both languages are bound together into one booklet.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) takes pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (“Reporting Period”).

Since early 2020, the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (the “COVID-19”) has spread throughout the world. Every
countries had implemented different levels of disease prevention
measures, including lockdown and quarantine policies.

Hong Kong suffered the fifth wave of the COVID-19 in 2022,
certain prevention measures were implemented.

The COVID-19 definitely impacted to Hong Kong, The
People's of the Republic of China (the “PRC”) and even the global
economy. The Hang Seng Index fell 15.46% per cent in 2022, and
unfavourable performance of financial market in United States of
America (the “US”), as a result, the Group suffered net loss for the
Reporting Period.

The external environment is of high relevance to the economy
and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the COVID-19
still raging across the world and the Russo-Ukrainian War, the
Group expects it will continue to affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group will closely monitor the development of
the external environment and continue to evaluate its impact on
our business, financial position and operating results.

Looking ahead to the year 2023, the Company will stay in
focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for their
invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their zeal
in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the success
of our Group.

Chau Wai Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWE DM

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income, interest earned from bank deposits and loans
and receivables. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$4,552,000 as
compared to approximately HK$7,696,000 in the prior year,
representing a decrease of approximately 40.9%. The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to decrease of interest income
during the Reporting Period. Gross proceeds from disposals
of trading securities for the Reporting Period was recorded of
approximately HK$8,880,000 as compared to approximately
HK$9,629,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group
recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$1,168,000 (2021:
HK$80,000) and fair value loss of approximately HK$37,578,000
(2021: HK$12,937,000) on listed securities held by the Group
during the Reporting Period. The Group recorded a net realised
loss of approximately HK$5,783,000 (2021: HK$13,890,000) on
disposals of loan notes. During the Reporting Period, impairment
losses of various loan notes of approximately HK$432,000 (2021:
HK$1,801,000) and no impairment loss of deposits and other
receivables (2021: nil) were recognised. With the unfavourable
performance of certain publicly traded securities held by the
Group and fair value loss of certain unlisted securities during the
Reporting Period, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$48,079,000 as compared
to a loss of approximately HK$28,643,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and loans and receivables) were approximately HK$98,858,000
(2021: HK$103,782,000). Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments was approximately HK$791,000 (2021: HK$282,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$118,301,000 (2021: HK$144,403,000). The
net assets decreased 18.08% when compared to prior year. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased
from approximately HK$61,938,000 as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$54,202,000 as at 31 December 2022 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$24,903,000 (2021: HK$25,545,000) was as at
31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had available funds of
approximately HK$4,270,000 which were mainly placed in banks
and licensed securities firms as general working capital. Bank
balances and cash balance in licensed securities firms held by the
Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$118,301,000 at 31 December 2022 compared to HK$144,403,000 at
31 December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately 18.08%.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$14,162,000 (2021: HK$21,310,000). The
gearing ratio for the Group was 11.88% (2021: 14.8%) which
represents the ratio of the Group’s borrowings to the net asset
value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2022.

During the Reporting Period, no share option was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the share option scheme,
adopted by the Company at annual general meeting on 17 June
2022.

Save as the placing of new shares as disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidation financial statements and under the heading of
“Placing of New Shares” below, there was no significant change in
the Group’s capital structure for the Reporting Period.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 13 June 2022, 4 July 2022 and 19 July 2022, respectively
(the “Announcements”) in relation to, amongst others, the Placing.
Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements.

After trading hours on 13 June 2022 and 4 July 2022, the
Company and Sorrento Securities Limited entered into the Placing
Agreement and Supplementary Placing Agreement pursuant to
which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent to procure,
on a best efforts basis, placees to subscribe for up to 86,334,444
new shares at a price of HK$0.264 per Placing Share. The gross
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$22.8 million
and the net proceeds were approximately HK$22.6 million. It
was intended that the net proceeds from the Placing would be
utilised for investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$10.0 million, repayment of
short term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$6.1 million and the remaining balance would
be used as the Group’s general working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Details of the Placing, Placing Agreement and Supplementary
Placing Agreement were set out in the Announcements.

As at the date of this report, detailed breakdown and
description of the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Placing
were as follows:

Date of announcement Event Net proceeds raised
DMy EH £ FEREFRE

13 June 2022 (completed on Placing new shares under Approximately HK$22.6

19 July 2022) general mandate million
ZR-ZERATZH BE-REBEEHRN NR6EEBT
(R-F-—#tAtAR
k)
Note: The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised net proceeds

is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of future market
conditions, and is subject to change depending on current market
conditions and future market developments.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAIT
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Intended use of net proceeds
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RERz

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Approximately HK$10.0
million for the investment in
listed securities and unlisted
securities

Approximately HK$6.1 million
for repayment of short term
loan and payment of interest

Approximately HK$6.5 million
for general working capital of
the Group
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Actual use of proceeds and
expected timeline for fully utilising
the unutilised amount (Nofe)
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(i

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

/8 =

1= K

Approximately HK$10.0 million
was used to invest in listed
securities

Approximately HK$5.2 million
was used to repay short term
loan, the balance approximately
HK$0.9 million would utilised as
intended on or before 30 June
2023

Approximately HK$5.4 million
was used for operating
expenses, the balance
approximately HK$1.1 million
would utilised as intended on or
before 30 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company is an investment company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. It is
the corporate strategy of the Group to strengthen its existing
businesses and continue its focus on financing future investment
opportunities domestically and internationally to achieve financial
growth for the Group and to maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company held thirteen investments as of 31 December
2022, comprising nine equity securities listed in Hong Kong and
the US, one loan note issued by private entity in the PRC, one
loan note issued by private entity in Netherlands, one item of
interests in a private entity in Anguilla and one item of interests
in a private entity in the U.S.. Pursuant to the requirements
stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Company
discloses its ten largest investments and all individual investments
with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets with brief
description of the investee companies are provided in the notes
21 to 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this report
and the section under “significant investments held and their
performance” below.

Details of the performance of the significant investments held
by the Group as at 31 December 2022 were disclosed under the
heading of “Financial Review” above and in notes 21 to 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The ten largest investments and all individual investments
with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets as at 31
December 2022 with brief description of the investee companies
as follows and as disclosed in notes 21 to 23 to the consolidated
financial statements:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DM

Yun Kang Data is a private entity established in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in applying deep learning and
artificial intelligence to analyse the big data for application and
provide clinical diagnosis. Yun Kang Data issued a loan note
(“LN2”) in November 2020 with fixed interest at 6% per annum to
the Company and would mature after three years from the date
of issue. The interest income recognised of the Group from LN2
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$1.2
million (2021: HK$1.2 million). The Board considered that the life
science and big data industry is a future trend of the globe and it
might a gateway to get involved in this industry by holding the LN2
and to enjoy the fixed interest income as well.

D5 is a private entity established in Netherlands, which is
principally engaged in storage business. D5 issued a loan note
(“LN3”) in December 2021 with fixed interest at 3% per annum
to the Group and would mature after two years from the date of
issue. The interest income recognised of the Group from LN3 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$0.9
million (2021: HK$3,000). The Board considered that 3% of fixed
interest income by holding LN3 is in the interest of the Group to
obtain stable interest income and can diversify the investment
portfolio of the Group and to enter into European market.

Perfect Path is a private entity incorporated in Anguilla, which
principally engaged in gold mining business. The Group held 20%
of equity interest of Perfect Path, despite the Group held 20%
of the voting power in Perfect Path, however, under contractual
arrangements the Group has no significant influence over Perfect
Path, another single shareholder control the composition of the
board of directors and have control over Perfect Path. Perfect
Path indirectly owns 9% interest in a gold mine in Thailand (the
“Gold Mine”). According to Perfect Path, all relevant application
documents for obtaining the Gold Mine licences and permits were
submitted to the relevant local government authorities in Thailand,
as the relevant application is still in process, Perfect Path still
not deployed their business and no income generated during the
year ended 31 December 2022. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic
has raged in much of the world since early 2020, including
Thailand, after having taken into account all relevant factors and
vigilantly verified it with Perfect Path, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the shareholders of Perfect Path had reached
the consensus, to proactively approach potential buyer in realising
the investment of the gold mine development so benefited by the
increasing of gold price these years so that alternative investment
opportunities can be identified to reduce investment risk due to
uncertainties.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAIT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LNPR is a private entity incorporated in the US, which is
principally engaged in online education business. The Group
held 7.02% equity interest of LNPR. According to LNPR, they
are seeking listing on OTC market and already submitted the
application to the authority in the US. The Board was of the view
that having equity interest in LNPR is benefit from listing on OTC
market successfully.

Tencent is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 700). Tencent is principally engaged in the
provision of value-added services, financial technology and
business services and online advertising services. Based on
the latest published quarterly report for the nine months ended
30 September 2022 of Tencent, the net profit for the period was
approximately RMB81,805 million comparing with the net profit
for the same period last year was approximately RMB132,105
million. The decrease of net profit of Tencent was mainly due
to the decrease in other gains and the increment of general
and administrative expenses. The equity attributable to equity
holders of Tencent as at 30 September 2022 was approximately
RMB755,920 million. Net dividend (after expenses) approximately
HK$0.2 million was received from Tencent during the year ended
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$3,800), including
dividend in the form of a distribution in specie of JD.com, Inc.
(stock code: 9618), equivalent to the market price of JD.com, Inc.
approximately HK$187,000 as at the distribution date. The Board
believed the leading position of Tencent in the market can make
them to enjoy the prosperity of internet industry, the Group treats
the investment in Tencent as the long term.

Winchester is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
WCHS) which is listing on OTC market in the US. Winchester is
an exclusive seller in Hong Kong and Macau for Fiat Professional
vehicle. Based on the latest unaudited financial statements for
the nine months ended 30 September 2022, the net loss was
approximately US$0.1 million. The net assets of Winchester
as at 30 September 2022 was approximately US$50,000. No
dividend was received from Winchester during the year ended 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: nil). Fiat Professional is an
international famous car brand and it has been awarded numerous
international prizes by panels of trade journalists. The Board
believed Winchester obtaining the exclusive seller right of Fiat
Professional is a catalyst of Winchester. The Group would hold
the investment in Winchester and closely monitor its performance
and may adjust the portfolio of Winchester from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Alibaba is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 9988). Alibaba is principally engaged in online retail
platform, cloud computing, digital media and entertainment.
Based on the latest published interim report for the six months
ended 30 September 2022 of Alibaba, the net loss for the
period was approximately RMB2,169 million comparing with
the net income for the corresponding period was approximately
RMB46,212 million. No dividend was received from Alibaba
during the Reporting Period (2021: N/A). The Board believed
the leading position of Alibaba in the market can make them to
enjoy the prosperity of internet industry, the Group would hold the
investment in Alibaba and closely monitor its performance and
may adjust the portfolio of Alibaba from time to time.

RHCO is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
RHCO) which is listing on OTC market in the US. RHCO is a
venture capital corporation which is active in the Fintech, Online
Payment and E-commerce industries. RHCO has growth engines
which are projected to have significant growth on the revenue
in coming years as the business becomes mature. Based on
the latest unaudited financial statements for the three months
ended 30 September 2022, the net income was approximately
US$54,000. The net asset value of RHCO as at 30 September
2022 was approximately US$17.2 million. No dividend was
received from RHCO during the Reporting Period (2021: nil).
The Board expects RHCO has growth engines making positive
to its financial performance. The Group would closely monitor its
performance and may adjust the portfolio of RHCO timely.

SNTE is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink: SNTE)
which is listing on OTC market in the US which is engaged in
artificial intelligence business. No dividend was received from
SNTE during the year ended 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: N/A). The Board believed artificial intelligence business is a
future trend.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SMIC is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 981). SMIC is principally engaged in the different
business activities, such as the computer-aided design, sales and
marketing, technical research and development, manufacturing,
testing, packaging and trading of integrated circuits and other
services, as well as designing and manufacturing semiconductor
masks, respectively. Based on the latest published interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 of SMIC, the revenue for
the period was approximately USD3,745 million, the profit for the
period was USD1,198 million. No dividend was received from
SMIC during the Reporting Period (2021: nil). The Board believed
the leading position of SMIC in the market can make them to
enjoy the growth of customer demand, the Group would hold the
investment in SMIC and closely monitor its performance and may
adjust the portfolio of SMIC from time to time.

JD.com is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 9618). JD.com is a leading supply chain-based
technology and service provider, providing products and services
to consumers, third-party merchants, suppliers and other business
partners. JD.com operates e-commerce business, including online
retail and online marketplace mainly through its retail mobile apps
and www.jd.com website. According to the first quarter results
for the three months ended 31 March 2022, the net revenue
was approximately RMB239.7 billion, income for operations was
RMB2.4 billion and net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
was RMB3.0 billion. Net dividend (after expenses) approximately
HK$4,000 was received from JD.com during the Reporting Period
(2021: n/a). The shares of JD.com holding by the Company was
a dividend by Tencent Holdings Limited to the Company by way
of distribution in specie. The Group would closely monitor its
performance of JD.com.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 2
full-time employees (2021: 2 full-time employees), including the
executive Directors. Employees’ remuneration are fixed and
determined with reference to the market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
Directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive Directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No Director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration package
include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary cash
bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term incentive
plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the continued
pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives, the Company may
grant share options to subscribe for shares of the Company to
the employees (including Directors) of the Company based on
their performance and contribution to the Company under the
Company's share option scheme (if any).

The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2022, no asset was pledge by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any major acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other
plan for material investments or acquisition of material capital
assets as at 31 December 2022.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company have no capital commitments as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREREBH

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is principally engaged in the provision
of investment service in securities listed on recognised stock and
exchanges and unlisted investments with potential for earning
growth and capital appreciation. This Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”, “Report”) summaries the
Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) initiatives,
plans and performances and demonstrates its commitment to
sustainable development. The ESG Report specifies the ESG
activities, challenges, performance, and measures taken by
the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2022
(“Reporting Period”, “Year”, “FY2022").

The ESG Report covers the core business activities of the
Group in Hong Kong. ESG data of the Group’s direct operational
control is gathered and reported in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all the
applicable provisions as set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) under
the Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules. The Group has
applied the following reporting principles for preparation of this
ESG Report:

“Materiality”: The materiality assessment was conducted
to identity material ESG issues during the Reporting Period,
thereby adopting the confirmed material ESG topics as the focus
for the preparation of the ESG Report. Material ESG issues were
reviewed and confirmed by internal and external stakeholder
engagement.

“Quantitative”: Quantitative data with supplementary notes
are used for KPI disclosure to represent a measurable result and
to explain the standards, methodologies, and source of conversion
factors used during the calculation emissions and energy
consumption.

“Consistency”: The preparation approach of this ESG
Report is substantially consistent with methodologies applied in
previous year, and explanations are provided regarding changes
in reporting boundary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This Report contains forward-looking statements which
are based on the current expectations, estimates, projections,
beliefs, and assumptions of the Company about the businesses
and the markets in which it and its subsidiaries operate.
These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to market risk, uncertainties, and
factors beyond the control of the Company. Therefore, actual
outcomes and returns may differ materially from the assumptions
made and the statements contained in this Report.

Information included in the Report was sourced from the
official documents and statistical data of the Group. The Report
has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

Should you have any enquiry on this ESG Report, please
kindly contact us by email cs@cocoon.holdings.

The Group is focusing to unlock the value of emerging
companies in China, Hong Kong, and overseas by directly
investing in emerging private and listed companies in China, Hong
Kong, and overseas, with the emphasis on those high-growth
companies focusing on domestic market.

The Group understands that it is important to build up strong
corporate governance to attract investment, protecting the rights
of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhancing shareholder
value. The Group is committed to accounting for its shareholders
with a highly transparent and open attitude, holding a high
standard in business ethics and invests in sustainable businesses,
and improving the quality of the communities and the environment,
providing long-term returns to its stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREREBH

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate
responsibility on monitoring the Group’s ESG issues, including
ESG management approach, strategy, and policies. To better
manage the Group’s ESG performance and identify potential risks,
the Board conducts materiality assessment where necessary
with the assistance of the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”)
to evaluate and prioritise material ESG-related issues with
reference to the opinions of our stakeholders. The Board sets
up a general direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring
the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and internal control
mechanisms.

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce. The Taskforce
comprises all members of the management team of the Group
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on its ESG
aspects for preparing the Report. The Taskforce reports to the
Board, assists in identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG
risks and the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms
and reviews the progress of the set ESG goals and targets. The
Taskforce also examines and evaluates the Group’s performances
in different aspects such as environment, health and safety,
labour standards and product responsibilities in the ESG aspects.
The Taskforce is responsible for collecting and analyzing ESG
data, monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance,
ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations, and
preparing ESG reports. The Taskforce discusses the existing and
upcoming plans to monitor and manage the Group’s strategic
goals in terms of sustainable development, mitigate potential
risks, and minimize their negative impacts on business operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group values stakeholder engagement and feedback
on the Group business development. To improve communication
with our major stakeholders, multi-channel interaction with
the stakeholders was established, as a proactive approach
to continuously interact with key stakeholder groups for their
feedback. The key stakeholder groups include but not limited % EE  -BPF
to the Stock Exchange, government and regulatory authorities,

shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
media and the public and the community. Diverse communication

channels are listed as below:

Stakeholders
BiE

The Stock Exchange

o

X

Bt

2 Fft

Government and Regulatory
Authorities

BB

Shareholders and Investors

BREKREE

Employees

(=31

Customers

5P

Suppliers

HER

Media, Public & Community

Heg  RRRHRE

Communication Channels

BARE

* The Stock Exchange website

»  Written or electronic correspondences
. BERETH 115

- EERETREA

+  Written or electronic correspondences
»  Visits and government inspections

° %Eyﬁ%i_nf

 THERBUSER

*  General meeting and other shareholder
meetings

* Annual reports

* Announcements and circulars

s BRERGREMBRRERE

- EHR

. RNERBK

* Training

* Internal meeting

. 5

- AHEH

*  Customer service
*  Client meetings

- BFRB

- RPER

*  Business meetings and discussion

. EHERRAH

« ESG report

*  Annual reports

+  Community activities
*  Charitable donations

. B HEREARS
. FH
. HEED

o %

° ?\L‘E\m?ﬁm)\

BETEPURSRENHRE
BRETRREIA BEREEERE BRRERE

LW BBRE

RE  HERERRBE
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CTERMERER
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FIREAT ¢

CRBRAE - FE

Expectations

e

*  Compliance with Listing Rules and
other relevant Ordinances

o BT TR AR E b 48 B8 &

Compliance with local laws and
regulations
*  Support for local economic growth

. Lﬁaﬂééﬁﬁﬂ
- TREMEEER

. Investment return

»  Corporate governance
*  Business compliance

- REDH

- EEWD

.« EBER

. Remuneration, compensation, and
benefits

e Career development

o HBN - W RER

. BEZBR

e Customer privacy

* Business ethic and integrity

. EFE

s BEBEEMAE

*  Fair and open procurement

* Relationship

c RTFRARE

- B

e Transparency

«  Corporate governance

* Active participation to community
development

.« FEHE

° TEER

- EBRZHEMEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group’s ESG Taskforce has participated in the
preparation of the Report to assist the Group in reviewing its
operations and identifying relevant ESG issues and assessing
the importance of related issues to the Group’s businesses and
stakeholders. Material assessment has been conducted to identify
the issues. The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s
material ESG topics included in this Report:

BB

AREOHES  HEREATEMASRBRA
CERPVIESY EOES ST E R
REAO MBS LR ES R
RFHHENER - DT EBEF B XS
B UTERARBEFRAREOEAS LY
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Materiality Matrix of The Group

MBI ERIEER Safeguard Client Assets Responsible Investment
A REEZEEE BB LHIRE
Recruitment, Promotion ./ i
and Remuneration
BEE BT R EEN
BRET R
2 Labour Standard IR IRE
§ Ei =
|2 iain . Indoor Air Quality /
% E ;Z‘:]ZZ;::‘: ENEREE Deve_:_op_m_ent and o gcfaipational Health and
e B Anticoruot ION O o o
"c’ ® nii-cofruption B S E BERERET D
S i RES ®
- )
o I ) -
g Emissions .\.\ Comm;g%%irﬁglpanon
E BER Technology Innovation Climate Change
l— Use of Resources 53 ?%LTEU bl SRS ¢
Waste Management
— mEmEE
Impact on Business g
HEBHIE
Materiality Issues (From high to low impact)
EEZMBEE(RSIERE)
1 Responsible Investment 9 Indoor Air Quality
BEAENKRE EANEREE
2 Safeguard Client Assets 10 Anti-corruption
REEZFPEE k&3
3 Data Privacy Protection 11 Community Participation
BB AR E ol
4 Occupational Health and Safety 12 Technology Innovation
BEEERTE o 8l #h
5 Recruitment, Promotion and Remuneration 13 Supply Chain Management
B B R E M HERER
6 Labour Standards 14 Emissions
BT AR R
7 Development and Training 15 Use of Resources
EESEE] BIRE A
8 Climate Change 16 Waste Management
Rzt BEEMER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is devoted
to contributing efforts for the decarbonisation target, by taking
responsive measures such as energy efficiency actions.
Sustainability is integrated into business strategy development,
with the aim to minimise carbon footprint and strengthen the
resilience to climate-related risks.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and
land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
are not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and the
Waste Disposal Ordinance.

Since the Company did not have either town fuel and town
gas consumption or emission of motor vehicles during the Year.
Therefore, no emissions data was applied.

A major source of GHG emissions of the Group is the
consumption of electricity at the office due to its office-based
operation. As the Group does not own or operate any machinery
and vehicles to generate fossil fuel consumption such as
petrol and diesel, no Scope 1 direct GHG emission has been
recorded. Scope 2 indirect GHG emissions are generated by the
consumption of purchased electricity.
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RE  HEREREBH

The Group set a target of reducing the GHG emissions
intensity by 5% through a 3-Year Plan with FY2021 as a baseline
of comparison. Through the reduction in energy consumption,
a decrease in GHG emissions can be achieved. Details of GHG
emissions performance are represented below:

Indicator? &
Scope1 — Direct GHG Emissions HE1 —EEBREREHEN

Scope2 — Indirect GHG Emissions #[E2 — ME B EREH N
Scope3 — Other Indirect GHG

Emissions Paper Waste Disposed

#HE3 — EMEZEREERE
BEphr FORIR 5 R B Y R

at Landfill #
Total GHG Emissions BEREHEMES
Intensity? AR
Notes:

1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and is based on, but no limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report-Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange, the Sustainability Report 2021 issued by Hong Kong
Electric.

2. tCO.e is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

3. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue and gross proceed of
approximately HK$13.5 mil (2021: HK$17.3 mil). The data is also used
for calculating other intensity data.

The sewage discharge into land is insignificant due to the
Group business nature. During the Reporting Period, there was no
significant amount of sewage water discharged. Used water was
discharged to the municipal sewage network to the regional water
treatment plant.

The Group does not generate hazardous waste due to its
business nature and office-based operation. Non-hazardous waste
was mainly paper waste generated by the Group from office.
Although the Group expects that the impact of non-hazardous
waste will be insignificant, paper-saving initiatives are
implemented as responsive measures for the decarbonisation
target of the Group.
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Paper consumption involves extensive tree removals, which
intensifies the magnitude of impact caused by global warming.
The Group is committed to creating a paperless working
environment at office for environmental conservation. The Group
sets an ESG goal with the target to reduce total non-hazardous
wastes intensity (kg/million revenue) by 5% in 3 years’ time with
FY2021 as base year for comparison. The goal will be achieved
by reducing paper consumption and recycling of paper. The Group
has implemented paper-saving initiatives such as encouraging
employees to use duplex printing for internal documents and
adopt environmental-friendly photocopier. Electronic data storage
is in place to minimize paper use for record keeping. Employees
are encouraged to communicate through digital means such as
sending emails to minimise unnecessary printing and upload
reports for shareholders’ access through the internet to reduce
number of printed copies.

Non-hazardous waste discharge performance is disclosed as
below:

Category of Waste BEYES
Total Non-Hazardous Waste BEEEVHE

— Office Paper used — WREAK
Intensity RE

The Group is committed to preserving the natural assets
through improving efficiency of resources consumption. To
prevent excessive use of resources and enhance sustainability
performance, the Group has formulated proactive measures with
environmental conscious to achieve this goal.

A major source of energy consumption generated by
the Group is purchased electricity consumption for the office
operation. To participate as a responsible corporate citizen, the
Group endeavours to pursue green office practices and cultivates
green corporate culture, with the target to minimise electricity
consumption.
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RE  HEREREBH

The Group has set the goal to reduce energy consumption
intensity by 5% in the next 3 years, with FY2021 as the base year

AREEREBE U-_TE-—HEALEHE
F ORR=ZFRREEZER D% - IWIRK g

for comparison. This ESG goal is achieved by the implementation
of energy-saving measures such as adjusting the temperature of
air conditioners at a reasonable level, conducting routine checks
for electrical appliances and turning off computers when they are

not in use.

Performance of energy consumption is summarised as below:

REARBBRDBBEMMEEERER xR
BERBERIBKE  HERETHITRE - ETRE

REMSBMER -

Indicator BE
Direct energy BEER
Indirect energy A # 88 R

— Electricity — 8N
Total Energy Consumption BEREFEAEE
Intensity mE

Water consumption by employees at the office is mainly used
for basic cleaning and drinking and the amount is small. Still, the
Group encourages our employees to have water conversation
concepts such as reminding them to turn off the water tap after
uses. As the water supply and drainage facilities of the Group's
our offices are managed by the property management company,
the Group was unable to access water consumption records
during the Year. Due to the business nature and operating
locations, the Group does not encounter any significant issues in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

During the Reporting Period, the Group does not record any
consumption of packing materials due to its business nature.

The business activities conducted by the Group do not bring
significant impact on the environment and natural resources
because of its office operation. The Group will stay resilient for
environmental protection, minimising environmental degradation
and harmful impacts on biodiversity.
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Indoor air quality in the workplace is regularly monitored and
measured. The Group maintains indoor air quality by installing air
purification equipment in workplace and cleaning air-conditioning
systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust. Green plants are
also placed in offices to improve the overall air quality.

The Group recognises the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”), there are two major categories
of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. During the
Reporting Period, climate-related risks have been embedded into
the Group’s risk management system, and relevant mitigation
measures have also been formulated.

Based on the global statistic, the frequency, and severity
of extreme weathers such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls
and extreme cold or hot weather are getting intense. The Group
expects that its business operation would be affected by chronic
risks such as frequent typhoons and flooding, employee safety is
threatened under severe typhoon signals and business operations
need to be ceased under typhoon signal no.8 or above, leading to
delayed performance.

The Group set out an emergency plan attached to the Staff
Handbook to ensure employees understand that their rights are
protected, staff are not required to go to work under specific
extreme weather regarding relevant local regulations. Regular
reviews of the emergency plan will be conducted to assure
business stability.

To achieve the global vision of carbon neutrality, the Group
expects evolution of the regulatory, technological, and market
landscape due to climate change, including the tightening
of national policies and listing rules and the emergence of
environmentally related taxes. Stricter environmental laws and
regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of claims and
lawsuits, which might incur additional compliance costs and affect
the reputation of the Group.
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RE  HEREREBH

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes in
laws or regulations and global trends on climate change to avoid
cost increments, non-compliance fines, or reputational risks due
to delayed response. In addition, the Group has been taking
comprehensive environmental protection measures, including
GHG reduction measures have set targets to gradually reduce the
Group’s energy consumption and GHG emissions in the future.

The Group values employees as important assets. The
Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation, and benefits packages to attract and retain talents.
The Group has established a Remuneration Committee, which
regularly reviews its remuneration policy. The Remuneration
Committee ensures packages offered by the Group are appealing
to employees and in line with the market trend.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage
Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, and the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

As of 31 December 2022, there were 2 employees located at
Hong Kong. The below table shows the employee details of the
Group.

Indicator(s) EE

Total number of employees EBHEEH
By Gender & 1% Bl
Male 3

Female z

By Age Group RER AR
Below 31 years old 31T
31-45 years old 315458
Above 45 years old 4555 UA £
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During the Year, 1 employee left the Company. The employee
turnover rate is 33%. Details are disclosed as below.

Indicator(s) g

By Gender 1B
Male S

Female z

By Age Group RER AR
Below 31 years old 31T
31-45 years old 31ZE45%3%
45 or above years old 4553 BA

A robust, transparent, and fair recruitment process is adopted
by the Group. Talent acquisition is based solely on candidate
experience and expertise, regardless of age, ethnicity, origin,
gender identity, marital status, sexual orientation, and religion.
Employees are assessed by ability, who should fulfil the current
and future needs of the Group. The recruitment process will
be reviewed periodically by relevant personnel to ensure its
effectiveness.

Employee promotion and career advancement will be made
based on employee contribution and in line with the recruitment
and selection process. Performance appraisal and salary
review are conducted annually to determine salary adjustments
and promotion opportunities. Written and verbal performance
evaluations will be given to all employees at least once a year,
such evaluations aim to recognise the hard work of employees
and offer comments for their improvements. Remuneration
packages are offered to employees regarding job-related skills,
qualifications, and performances. To comply with relevant
regulations, mandatory provident funds are provided to
employees.

The Group emphasizes employment diversity for corporate
sustainability. Talent acquisition is based on experience and
expertise with equal employment opportunities. The Group
promotes norm based working environment which is free from
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and vilification.
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RE  HEREREBH

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of equal opportunities regarding gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual orientation, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy, or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law.

The Group emphasises on cultural diversity. Talent
acquisition includes employees from a wide range of ages,
gender, and ethnicities. To strengthen corporate governance
structure, culture of Board diversity is integrated into the Board
composition, which consists of members with a wide variety of
skill, industry knowledge and expertise, experience, educational
background, and other qualities without discrimination.

The Group has formulated policies in determining working
hours and rest days of employees for complying local employment
regulations. Any employee who is recruited under a continuous
contract is provided with rest days (Leave entitlement) and
statutory holidays. Leave entitlements include annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave, and wedding leave, to safeguard employee
rights and benefits.

All employees are covered under the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong upon joining the
Group, employees who sustain work injury would receive stated
compensation listed out by the local government and compulsory
insurance. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances is
strictly prohibited, dismissal would be based on reasonable and
lawful grounds supported by the internal policies of the Group. A
detailed list of major offences containing legitimate reasons for
immediate dismissal is included in the Employee Handbook.

The Group offers attractive benefits and welfare to retain
talented candidates and to build up employee loyalty. Additional
employee welfares include office insurance, employee
compensation insurance, directors, and officers (D&QO) liability
insurance, discretionary bonuses. The Group will continue
to provide its employees with a well-structured and caring
environment, to enhance their sense of belonging and work
efficiency for future development.
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Employee health and safety are always the top priority of
the Group. With this regard, the Group reinforced the health and
safety-related measures to minimize workplace accidents. The
business nature of the Group, an investment holding company,
involves lower risk regarding occupational health and safety,
however, the Group still implements precautionary measures to
assure employee safety.

The Group has achieved zero work-related fatalities for
three consecutive years from FY2020 toFY2022 and no lost
working days due to work injury within the Year. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
health and safety-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The Group values on-going development of employees
and recognises their contribution. To facilitate employee career
advancement, the Group delivers training programs according to
training needs.

The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy, and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing training,
briefings, and seminars will also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.

During the Reporting Period, 100% of employees received
training and total training hours is 50 hours. The employee’s
training data is as below.

Indicators BE
By Gender =15 Bl
Male 3
Female 4

By Employee Category ZEBEER
Senior Management BREEAS
Management ERE
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The Group has zero tolerance for the recruitment of child
labour and forced labour. Candidates are required to provide
identification cards and original certificates for checking. To
avoid hiring forced labour, the Group enters employment contract
with candidates and provide working conditions in accordance
with relevant labour regulations. Once a violation of regulations
is found, the Group will immediately terminate the employment
contract and carry out an investigation, further follow-up action will
be taken if required.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding child
and forced labour, including but not limited to the Employment
of Children Regulations and the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong.

The Group's main purchases are general office supplies such
as drinking water, paper, and stationery. All suppliers are based
locally.

The Group has established a supplier selection system.
The selection criteria mainly consider the scale of business
and reputation of the suppliers. To enhance the supply chain
system, the Group integrates ESG issues to its supply chain
management strategy, by considering additional factors relates
to environmental and social. To ensure the selected suppliers
are responsible corporate citizens, suppliers are expected to
establish good social practice of its business operation such as
protecting employee rights, create a discrimination-free working
environment, and comply with labour standards in corresponding
jurisdictions. Selected suppliers should demonstrate good practice
of code of business ethics and full compliance with relevant
regulations regarding anti-corruption and bribery. Assessments
for suppliers are conducted by the Group. The Group obtains
quotations from more than one supplier, ensuring a fair selection
process is implemented by above-mentioned measures.
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The Group strives to maintain a high level of sustainability
performance. With this regard, sustainable procurement policies
are formulated to enhance the efficiency of green procurement
procedures. To achieve a reduction in emissions target and
its negative impact on air pollution and the well-being of the
community, the Group prefers local procurement whenever
possible to minimize the consumption of transportation.

As an investment company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules, the
principal activity of the Company is an investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in investments in securities listed
on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments with
potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. Therefore,
issues on product responsibility including health and safety,
advertising, labelling relating to products and customer services
are not applicable to the Group.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited
to the Trade Descriptions Ordinance and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, concerning health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating to products and
services and methods of redress.

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual, disclosure of
insider information to a third party is prohibited, and so consumer
data and privacy matters relating to services are protected.
Employees are required to read the Employee Manual and
follow it strictly. During the Year, the Group did not receive any
products-or service-related complaints.

The Group protects its intellectual property rights by
registration of domain names in Hong Kong. Such domain name is
renewed upon its expiration. The Group understands and complies
with the intellectual property rights regulations.
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Data privacy is important in the financial industry, the Group
formulates the data privacy protection policy and includes
it in the Employee Manual to comply with the data privacy
ordinance. Employees are required to refer to the manual for
insider information handling procedures. Disclosure of insider
information, consumer data or privacy matters to third parties
are strictly prohibited. Proper actions such as investigations and
termination of contracts will be taken by the Group if a breach of
conduct is found.

The Group strives to achieve high standards of ethics in
our business operations. Fraudulent events such as corruption,
bribery and collusion are strictly prohibited. Employees should
comply with the rules stated in the Staff Handbook in performing
business activities, and they should report to the management if
they suspect any professional misconduct.

The Group has zero tolerance against any corruption-
related cases. The Group has strict internal control systems
governing anti-corruption. Regulations have been formulated and
all employees must comply with it. Regular risk assessments
are conducted to identify and evaluate corruption risks by the
Group. Internal control systems are established to ascertain
the effectiveness of mitigating corruption risks. An effective
whistleblowing system has been set out to encourage reporting
of malpractice by employees. This Policy will be reviewed
and updated from time to time to ensure its relevance and
effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded no material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations regarding
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering, including but
not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.
There were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group adopts a whistle-blowing policy and procedures for
all levels. Staff can raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties such as misconduct and malpractice in any matter
related to the Group. These policies and procedures can be found
in the Staff Handbook. Reports and complaints received will be
handled in a prompt and fair manner. Such policy also aims at
protecting whistle-blowers from unfair dismissal, victimisation and
unwarranted disciplinary actions.

Anti-corruption-related trainings are conducted annually.
During the Reporting Period, all directors have received
anti-corruption training and have spent approximately 1 hour
attending. The awareness of anti-corruption of the Group has
been enhanced.

As a corporate citizen, the Group is devoted to community
contribution and executes its social responsibility by participating
in charitable activities. Guidelines on community engagement has
been formulated in response to resources allocation for society
needs. To nurture a responsible corporate culture, the Group
encourage our employees to participate in volunteer activities.
The Board conducts periodic reviews on community engagement
for achieving satisfactory results of its contributions. In the coming
future, the Group plans to make more commitment in community
investment to improve social well-beings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are investments in securities listed
on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with a potential for earnings growth and capital appreciation.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income, interest earned from bank deposits and loans
and receivables.

Trading of trading securities is also a principal activity of the
Group, the figures of the gross proceeds from disposals of trading
securities are disclosed in the consolidated statement of Profit or
loss and other Comprehensive Income.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting
Period and the material factors underlying its results and
financial position are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and
pages 6 to 15 of this annual report respectively. The outlook
of the Company’s business is discussed in the “Chairman
Statement” from pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this annual report particularly in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2022, can be found in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. Environmental policies and performance are
discussed in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 16 to 33 of this annual report.
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The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong while the Company itself was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability with its shares listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Bermuda,
the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, we have complied in material respects with
the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands,
where applicable, and Bermuda, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 83 and note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

No distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2022, according to the Companies Act of Bermuda.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or applicable laws of Bermuda.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares
during the Reporting Period. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
shares during the Reporting Period.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) at its annual general meeting held on 17 June
2022. The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to provide
incentives to the participants, and to recognise their contributions
made and to be made to the growth and development of the
Group.

All Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, service providers, contractors,
business partners of any member of the Group in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed to the Group or any
member of it are eligible to participate in the Share Option
Scheme.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2022, the total
number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 43,167,222 shares of the
Company, which amounted to approximately 8.33% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 16 June 2032,
so the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately
nine years and three months as at the date of this report.
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Save as the placing new shares under the heading “Placing
of New Shares” and the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issues shares were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this report were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chan Carman Wing Yan (resigned on 20 June 2022)
Chau Wai Hing

Wong Chung Yan Sammy (retired on 17 June 2022)
William Keith Jacobsen

Chan Man Yi

Leung Yin Ting

Wong Sze Lok

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”)
and with the recommendation of the nomination committee of
the Company (“Nomination Committee”), Ms. Chan Man Yi,
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Leung Yin Ting, being the
longest in office and determined by lot, shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen is non-executive Director.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Wong Sze Lok
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence of the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent of the
Company.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions,
arrangements or other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or his connected
entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

The Bye-Laws provides that every Director shall be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all liability incurred by
him as such director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the Directors and officers of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Such insurance was in force during the Reporting
Period and remained in force as of the date of this annual report.
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Brief biographical details of Directors are set out below:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 47, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director effective from 1 March 2016 and appointed as
the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board in February 2019 and
ceased to be the Chairman with effect from 1 December 2022. He
is also a director of each subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Wu is
one of the directors and responsible officers of Tiger Securities
Asset Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as
the investment manager of the Company since 1 March 2016).
Mr. Wu is currently licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (assets management)
regulated activities accredited to Tiger Securities. He has obtained
the Honor Diploma of Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University in July 1999. He has over 12 years of management
experience in fund accounting and asset management. He was
the chief operating officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012
responsible for the overall operation of fund management. Since
2013, he has been the director of the same company responsible
for the general management of regulated activities.
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Mr. Chau Wai Hing, aged 57, was appointed as executive
Director and a member of investment committee of the Board on
23 April 2021 and re-designated as chairman of the investment
committee of the Board with effect from 20 June 2022. Mr. Chau
has taken up the position as the Chairman with effect from 1
December 2022. Mr. Chau possesses over 30 years of experience
in banking, finance and wealth management and held executive
positions at several international financial institutions and listed
companies. Mr. Chau graduated from City University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Quantitative Analysis for
Business, Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting
and Master Degree in Finance. He also holds a Master Degree
in Professional Accounting from the Southern Cross University
in Australia. Mr. Chau is a fellow member of the Institute of
Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow member of the Institute
of Financial Accountants, a chartered member of the Chartered
Institute for Securities and Investment and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Chau
previously joined the Company as a non-executive Director and
an executive Director for the period from July 2015 to September
2015 and September 2015 to February 2019 respectively. Mr.
Chau was a licensed person to carry out type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO from July 2020
to April 2021. Mr. Chau is currently an independent non-executive
director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (In
Liquidation) (stock code: 996) since May 2019, a company
incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability and is principally
engaged in the theme-based leisure and consumption business
and was ordered to be wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong
on 23 August 2022 and an executive director of UBA Investments
Limited (stock code: 768) since September 2021. He was an
independent non-executive director of Vestate Group Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1386) from February 2017 to March 2021
and he was also an executive director of UBA Investments Limited
(Stock code: 768) from December 2008 to April 2015.
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Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, aged 56, is a non-executive
Director and member of investment committee of the Company
since 17 November 2014. Mr. Jacobsen is the chief executive
officer of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate finance
matters. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Jacobsen has more
than 26 years of experience in corporate finance and business
development. He was an independent non-executive director of
Solis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2227) for the period from 25
September 2019 to 30 September 2020. Mr. Jacobsen is currently
an independent non-executive director of abc Multiactive Limited
(stock code: 8131) and Kingkey Intelligence Culture Holdings
Limited (formerly known as KK Culture Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 550).

Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 August 2018. She is currently the
chairman and a member of each of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Chan was
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Master’s degree in professional accounting and has over 25 years
of experience in pension and provident fund industry. Ms. Chan is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Ms. Chan was the company secretary of Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8159) from 4 December
2012 to 10 January 2019 and she is currently an independent
non-executive director of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8001), both companies are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company
on 14 December 2018. She was appointed as a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 17 June 2022. Ms.
Leung is a barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar
of Hong Kong in 2013. She is currently a member of HKICPA
and has achieved the specialist qualification in insolvency of
HKICPA in 2016. Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws
from University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 2006. Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more than
four years’ audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong Sze Lok, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board on 23 April 2021. Mr. Wong
was appointed as a member of audit committee of the Board
on 17 June 2022. He has extensive experience in auditing and
corporate governance. Mr. Wong was the chief financial officer
of Century Entertainment International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Amax International Holdings Limited) (Stock code:
959), the financial controller of Guoan International Limited (Stock
code: 143) and an independent non-executive director of Grand
Field Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 115). Mr. Wong is
currently an independent non-executive director of TBK & Sons
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1960) and Aowei Holding Limited
(Stock code: 1370). Mr. Wong also serves as the company
secretary of Unitas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8020). Mr.
Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1996, a master
of management degree from Macquarie University in November
2004 and a certificate of higher education in Law from University
of Essex in December 2021. Mr. Wong is currently a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Certified Information Systems Auditor.
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As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or the chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had,
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under Part XV of the
SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or chief executives (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had been notified
of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
position, being 5% or more of the Company’s shares and
underlying shares which are required to be recorded in the
register of interests in shares and short positions maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests
BRRESEE8B B ERmtE
Yu Po Kwan Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
RE EnAEAN EBEaEsn

Solution Smart Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
ERBERAN/Enlsx
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REBEE-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8BLFE AR
AIRETRRBEARMELETHTH  BELARQ
AEEIAERTHRAB(ERER(LETRAIN(BHEH
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fEBE MR DK EEZMER -

RZEZZF+_A=Z+—8 E(EBEHEH
BIEPI)EIBBKRABAETF RO ERRAEELHE
TOARTBEMEUATEERTREEARAKRSG &
HEERMDEE%RIA EZ2 S RIAAR ¢

Percentage of
total issued shares
of the Company
as at 31 December 2022

Number of ordinary HERATR=-E-Z
shares held +=ZA=+—-8B2
FREEERYA ERITROAEE S

64,522,000 (L) 12.45%
5,174,000 (L) 0.99%
(Notes 1 & 2)

(HfsF1702)
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Name of shareholders

BERHEE B8 Bip  REEME
SW Venture Asia Limited

Corporate interest
ZEGEEEREEER

Yeung Shing Wai
Corporate interest

5 (& ZEGEEEREEER

(L) — Long Position

(S) — Short Position

Notes:

Capacity/Nature of Interests

Interest in a controlled corporation/

Interest in a controlled corporation/

Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by
SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly, Mr.
Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited
under the SFO.

Following the completion of the Rights Issue in October 2019, the
Placing in June 2021 and July 2022, the Company had not received
any notifications of disclosure of interests from those shareholders
reporting the change in percentage of shares. Based on the issued
shares as at 31 December 2022, the percentage level of those
shareholders had been reduced to below 5%.
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Number of ordinary

Percentage of

total issued shares

of the Company

as at 31 December 2022
ERARR=Z=Z

shares held +=—A=+—-8B2
FEETERKE ERTROLEE S
5,174,000 (L) 0.99%
(Notes 1 & 2)
(Bt at1702)
5,174,000 (L) 0.99%

(Notes 1 & 2)

(Htaz1712)
(L -7
(S) — %A
k=3

Solution Smart Holdings Limited]s — 5 1A % & iz & Bf
Bz 2 BR AT - BSW Venture Asia Limited®
B A o SW Venture Asia Limited/) — R A H & = &
HEAMKIZERAR BHEXKEXE2EERH
oA BB(EHRBEKO) - 15K E % ERSW
Venture Asia Limited# 1% /& 74 Solution Smart Holdings
LimitedFi A 2 RO B R -

REZFE-NEFET+AEZKERER=ZZ=Z—FXAK=
T _FLARKREER  ARRHNABZERER
BN E DL EBH BT M ABEASEENBA -
BER-_Z-—F+-A=1+—BHNCBTRNM %
ERFENEDLLKFERESRUT -



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the
Company’s business are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the
Group’s customers and suppliers.

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 34(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, the above-mentioned connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions are constituted
exempted transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which were carried out and disclosed in compliance with the
relevant requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period
between the publication date of the 2022 interim report of the
Company and this report, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
are set out in the section of “Biographical Details Of Directors” and
“Board of Directors” of this annual report.
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As at the date of this report, the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Company’s is composed of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Sze Lok and Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to
the Board and reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as
financial statements and internal controls, to protect the interests
of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor, to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including review and approval of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAIT

RAHZEBH ARAEZZEE([ERZE
EDNERRE-ZEBIURTEERIEL (£
B) BRLELERRRELLT HEEZRNEETSE
WwURNEZEENANEER I BEHREEA
BEETE  MREAARIREAES -

ERZEREAR T%%@@%E%ﬁﬁgﬁ'
N mBEZEFREAEE IR ABEER
BHHEREEEN - EWX%E@I?L%V§A@
MERIBE YhEFTSEHRNLEN -#EH
B & 70 A A R A8 R B X P A U o

ERZECGCHEEE - REHNAKBERAZ
ERAREDN TERAALEERMBERES
HETH® ETPEREHNRMEREZE T _—
TZAZ+ - HULEFEZ2FXE -

BREBERARNBAHLAFEEETRAB L ER
%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%'$Aﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬁMﬁW%ﬁ
ERDRARA D HITRD25%Z EARRETRE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan RE(BEB)SHMEEMERATRE NN
Woods”) was appointed as auditor of the Company on 23 E-NF+_A-ZFT=ZAEZE AR ZHE -
December 2019.

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 REBHZ T -_TF - T -_—FR_FT -
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 have been audited by McMillan FT_ A=+ - HRLEFEZUBREZBREER -
Woods. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual EARREERRBEFASELESRERER U
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint McMillan Woods as BREESAANDRZEA -

the auditor of the Company.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date REAHBRAENERSTENFRBRINGRETE
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. WERMFEI6A ©
By order of the Board FEEED®
Cocoon Holdings Limited FEXSERERAA
Chau Wai Hing *E
Chairman R
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023 B ZEZ=F=ZR=+—H
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Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in
everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view
to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock
Exchange as its own code on corporate governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set out
in the Code during the Reporting Period, except the following
deviations:

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been vacant
following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan on 20
June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive officer,
the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
Code.

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to
attain its vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a
corporate culture with the following core principles and to ensure
that the Company’s vision, values and business strategies are
aligned to it.
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The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations. The Directors, management and staff are all required
to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required
standards and norms are explicitly set out in the training materials
for all new staff and embedded in various policies such as the
Group’s employee handbook (including therein the Group’s code
of conduct), the anti-corruption policy and the whistleblowing
policy of the Group. Trainings are conducted from time to time to
reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health, diversity,
and sustainability is one where people have a feeling of
commitment and emotional engagement with the Group’s mission.
This sets the tone for a strong, productive workforce that attracts,
develops, and retains the best talent and produces the highest
quality work. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in the business
development and management are to achieve long-term, steady
and sustainable growth, while having due considerations from
environment, social and governance aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised
two executive Directors, Mr. Chau Wai Hing, acts as Chairman
and Mr. Wu Ming Gai, one non-executive Director, Mr. William
Keith Jacobsen. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr.
Wong Sze Lok, representing more than one-third of the Board. Mr.
Wong Sze Lok, Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting all have
appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the changes to the composition of the Board were as
follows:

— Mr. Chau Wai Hing was appointed as the Chairman on
1 December 2022 and re-designated as chairman of the
Investment Committee with effect from 20 June 2022;

N ,A\Aiﬁi
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— Mr. Wu Ming Gai ceased to act as the Chairman with
effect from 1 December 2022;

— Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan resigned as executive
Director, chief executive officer of the Company and
chairman and member of the investment committee of the
Board with effect from 20 June 2022;

— Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy retired as non-executive
Director, member of audit committee and nomination
committee of the Board on 17 June 2022,

— Mr. Wong Sze Lok appointed as the member of audit
committee of the Board on 17 June 2022; and

— Ms. Leung Yin Ting appointed as the member of
nomination committee of the Board on 17 June 2022.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
Director are disclosed on pages 39 to 42 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board composition comprises
two female Directors. The Board would continue to maintain at
least one female Director on the Board.

The Board’s composition is in compliance with the
requirement under Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive Directors must
represent at least one-third of the Board and at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. In order to ensure that
independent views and input of the independent non-executive
Directors are made available to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board are committed to assess the Directors'
independence annually with regards to all relevant factors
related to the independent non-executive Directors including the
following:

— required character, integrity, expertise, experience and
stability to fulfill their roles;

— time commitment and attention to the Company's affairs;
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— firm commitment to their independent roles and to the
Board;

— declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;

— no involvement in the daily management of the Company
nor in any relationship or circumstances which would
affect the exercise of their independent judgment; and

— the Chairman meets with the independent non-executive
Directors regularly without the presence of the executive
Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company at least once every three years and eligible for re-
election.

The term of office of each of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Bye-Laws.
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The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company’s operations. They conduct
regular meetings with the management of the subsidiaries of the
Company, at which operational issues and financial performance
are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those reserved
for the management, such as daily management, administration
and operation of the Company, etc. with respective level of
authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy and
contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The Bye-Laws contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular
meeting and listens to the operating reports of the Company and
makes policies. Significant operating policies of the Company
have to be discussed and passed by the Board. Board meetings
include regular meetings as defined in the Code and other
meetings when necessary. The Board meets formally at least four
times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board held four regular
Board meetings at approximately quarterly interval and other
Board meetings which were convened when deemed necessary.
Due notice and Board papers of regular Board meetings were
given to all Directors prior to the meeting in accordance with
the Bye-Laws and the Code. Details of individual attendance of
Directors at regular Board meetings in 2022 are set out below:

Executive Directors

BiTES

Chau Wai Hing

JE 18 #

Mr. Wu Ming Gai

A ERE

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (resigned on 20 June 2022)
BRkMZE(RZFZ_FXAZTHEE)

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

ERH%E

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (retired on 17 June 2022)
ERCAE(RZ-ZZT__FRA+EBEME)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR E L

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

Rt

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

mRRELRLE

s/A\A*Ei
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CE IR ETHEFeeRNESTERMNEES
BIEHAT -

No. of regular Board Meeting attended/
No. of regular Board Meeting held
HEEHESSERRE
EIETHESEERNE

4/4
4/4

2/2

0/4

2/2

4/4
4/4

4/4
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There was no change to the composition of the Board and all
Board committees after the end of the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that
the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established set out in writing.
The Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are not
related to each other and there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and
authority.

The role of the Chairman assumed by an executive Director,
Mr. Chau Wai Hing who takes responsibilities of the Chairman
as specified in the Code on overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and effective functioning of the Board.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been vacant
following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan on 20
June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive officer,
the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman
has overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and
direction in the development of the business of the Company. As
Mr. Chau Wai Hing is the Chairman since 1 December 2022 and
has served as the executive Director of the Group, such practice
deviates from Code Provision C.2.1 of the Code as set forth in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both the Chairman and the chief executive officer
in the same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the Code is appropriate in such circumstance.
In addition, under the supervision of the Board which comprises
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to
protect the interests of the Company and the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) of the Company. During the Reporting Period, the
Chairman had held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the other executive Directors
and non-executive Directors.
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The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders of the Company. Their
responsibilities include:

— Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

— Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of the
Company.

— Approval of annual budgets for each operating company
covering strategy, financial and business performance,
key risks and opportunities.

— Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability
of internal and external reporting.

— Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related
party transaction.

— Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall
integrity of the Company, including financial statements,
relationships with other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations,
an appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly
defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

A number of board committees of the Company, including audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), investment committee
of the Board (“Investment Committee”), Nomination Committee and
remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”),
have been established by the Board to strengthen its functions
and to enhance its expertise. These committees have been formed
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties.
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The Board has established an Investment Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Investment Committee comprising one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chau Wai Hing (Chairman) and
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. William Keith Jacobsen.

The terms of reference of the Investment Committee have
been approved and adopted by the Board.

The Investment Committee considers, evaluates, reviews
and recommends to the Board the proposed major investments,
acquisitions and disposals, conducts post-investment evaluation
with investment manager of the investment projects, reviews
and considers the overall strategic direction and business
developments of the Company.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Sze
Lok (Chairman), Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management (under
code provision E.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, and to recommend
to the Board on remuneration of independent non-executive
Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2022:

— amended and re-adopted terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee;

— reviewed the remuneration policy for 2022/2023;

— determined the remuneration of executive Directors and
senior management; and

— reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of the

non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors).
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FHERCGET)

0 to 1,000,000
0%1,000,000

Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 131 to 133.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during 2022.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

The change of members of the Remuneration
Committee during the Reporting Period and up to
the date of this report and their attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meeting in 2022:

Names

e

Mr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman)
ERBEKE(FE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi

ReEz L

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
R+

P
ERERH|E

REBEE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=Z+—HLEFEARA ' =
BEEENE (BREZENTES) 2HFHEREIT
mE

Number of person(s)

AH

o EERESEZF R RS R HTALZH
BORBCEMREADK S+ ETFTHEE)  SRE
131 E133E 2R M IEMRMI 15 -

RoZB-—% FHEESRBGT—REZ-H
BB R ERN TR -

REEHMREZARE ABFHERRRA
BHRKER-F-—FHREFNEARRS
SESCE

No. of meeting attended/
No. of meeting held
HEERAE
BITEBRY

11

11

1M
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to benchmarking of relevant
competitors in geographical areas where the Group carry on its
businesses, career progressions of the individual, economic trend
in geographical areas where the Group carry on its businesses,
recognition of experience, role contribution; performance of the
Group and the individual’s performance. The Directors’ fees and
all other emoluments paid or payable to the Directors during the
Reporting Period are set out on an individual and named basis in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman), Mr. Wong Sze Lok and
Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to the Board and reviews
matters within the scope of audit, such as financial statements
and internal controls, to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2022:

— review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 respectively;

— review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

— review of internal audit function;

— review of continuing connected transactions and annual
caps;

— review of implementation of policy for employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

— review of independent auditor’s report and management
letter; and

— consideration and approval of 2022 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and resignation of auditor.
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As at 31 December 2022, the arrangement for employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
Reporting Period. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table below:

Names

HE

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)

REEL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (retired on 17 June 2022)
ERCEAE(RZE-__FA+EHEIK)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

REE L

Mr. Wong Sze Lok (appointed on 17 June 2022)
BERELEE(R_ZE-__FA+EtBEZMT)

The Board has established a Nomination Committee on 1
April 2012 which currently comprises, three independent non-
executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman), Ms. Leung Yin
Ting and Mr. Wong Sze Lok.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2022:

— made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board and
re-election of retiring Directors;

— reviewed the board diversity policy and nomination policy;

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

— conducted an annual review of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board composition and structure.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Ms. Chau Man Yi and
Ms. Leung Yin Ting to retire by rotation and, being eligible, to offer
themselves for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming 2023 annual general meeting.

In considering the nomination of appointment and/or
re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee assessed
the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability
to commit time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

The secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from the Director(s) for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by the
Director(s). The factors which would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for Director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as the
Director, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
Reporting Period. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table below:

Names

"

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)

REEL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (retired on 17 June 2022)
ERCAE(RZE-__FA+tHEMT)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 17 June 2022)
REELT(RZTE__FRAT++-BEZE)

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

EREEL

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy
aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the Board of the
Company.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors
and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender
or religious belief. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.
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Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity
policy. However, it will consider and review and setting of any
measurable objectives from time to time. The board diversity
policy is subject to annual review by Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted dividend policy, the dividend
policy does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering any dividend, the Board shall consider the actual
and expected financial performance of the Group, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to
equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders or other contractual restrictions, the Group’s
expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group, and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend
any dividends.
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Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the
Reporting Period, Directors received from the Company updates
on changes and development to the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Company operates. Directors
participated in continuous professional development such as
attending seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. On appointment to the Board, each
newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements. The Company had
received record of the trainings during the Reporting Period from
each Director relating to development and refreshment of their
knowledge and skills.
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Directors

=

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BPREg L

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

R HIg L+

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

=RESLYE

Reading regulatory updates

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles

and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance

are:

— to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices

on corporate governance; and

ExeAM

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance

matters for 2022:

— review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

— review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

— review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

— review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company
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The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is appointed a representative from an external
secretarial services provider as the Company Secretary. The
primary contact person of the Company with the Company
Secretary is Mr. Chau Wai Hing, the executive Director. The
role of the Company Secretary is to ensure effective information
flows and communication among Directors, as well as between
shareholders and management of the Company. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. During the Reporting
Period, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company comprises 2
female employees and 4 male employees (including non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors).
The Company would continue to maintain at least one female
employee.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors for the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors confirmed
that in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

N ,A\Aiﬁi

AR R (AT R ) i 50 3 s AR 75 2t
BERORRLEATNE - AAFAEAANME
TEMRABNTEERAERALE c ATHEOBR
EARREFHURRERAAFNSGREZME X
OEBSERAN  DARENARREAFAD
EERRLEE  2REFHIESAARENR
SR ME I AR EE EET RIS
BN BRI Y R T R R o

RZFBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H ARAH2RK
HEERAZEURB (BERFATESTRBILIFERT
EX) - ARABHEERBEIBEE-—BLEESR -

AARE RN ETARBIDH &+ Frak 2 g
TABESBETESR G ZEESAN(MEESFR])
EAEBRETESRPZBRTIES - KRAMBES
LR EERE  2REFER HNEBE-T==
+TZA=T—HLFEARN BEHEETEETEH
BTl B0 48 E AR 2 -

ARARMERAREZEBIERARAFESNARE
ﬁEW%EﬂAﬂiE%W”Q%%%Eﬁﬂ*E
R LR ST RIFTAT IR E R K

Annual Report 20225 #



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N 'A\Aiﬁi

The Audit Committee reviewed engagement letter and report
from the external auditor of the Company, McMillan Woods,
confirmed its independence. The Audit Committee also approves
their appointment, discusses the scope of their audit, approved
the audit fees, and the scope and appropriate fees for any non-
audit services requested to be provided by external auditors.

McMillan Woods provided annual audit services in respect of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 December 2022. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditors, McMillan Woods and other McMillan Woods
network firms, is as follows:

Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 350,000
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 60,000

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.
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The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the work
of internal audit function and during the Reporting Period, the
external professional consultant had reviewed and assessed
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems (the
“Systems”) and reported to the Audit Committee (the “Review”).
The Review would identify the risks associated with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which may include politics, economy, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

— Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of
the risks;

— Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so
as to avoid the risk;

— Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market;

— Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third
party.

Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Systems
with the management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective Systems.

The external consultant, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems for the year ended 31
December 2022 and made recommendations to improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems. After the Review, the
management provided an action plan so as to mitigate those
identified deficiencies in a timely manner. All internal control
findings would be followed up closely to ensure that the action
plan is implemented accordingly.

During the Reporting Period, the Board was satisfied that
the current internal control systems of the Company are effective
and adequate and that the qualifications and experience of the
staff, performing accounting and financial reporting functions
and the training programmes of the Company as well as the
experiences and resources for setting the budget of the Company
are adequate. The Company has complied with the requirements
under D.2.1 to D.2.7 and D.3.3 of the Code relating to risk
management and internal control.

\%qwiﬁi

AREBEYRKZABERZ  BREIBEXBH
BITABEZNENTHE ERSHE - INBEX
BRERASRFHEASENRREERABEZER
mUIRERR]D jflﬁ%&%:'AE#Fi(MﬁzEﬂ)
B RERGROEMER Y  BREEREEANER
B MR &/\iﬁﬁk?‘ o R R IEBE EAE
PO BAZRFERNEAKEXRFEERNER -

ERREBUA RKE BT RE HERET - %

RBREREBEABEZERZEENTREEETIRL
ﬁmﬁ%mf HERREEBRESRETHER
EARSHERR BREBEBNOEANRINNAT

— RARARBNRE: BEXARNFEXAEE
RERTERERRNTZE

— ARAE: XEBEXHREXBREARER

— BEBRISEMDE : DHEBRNZERDED
TR HEmMKTE

— RRBE HEMmARLIABTE=7 -

ECZESBFRANTEEEENR H BRER
E H Liﬁﬂﬁw°

REBEE-ZE-__F+-_A=+—BLEFEAR I
HERERTAEEZE R G AR RENE
REBZERZRGERENES - Tk SEERHE
ﬁ@%ﬂ'uﬁkﬁ% BRIMARZE - A RER

EREBE T AR R  ABRITE EF 5
WHEMO

REERE EBEEH - AR [ B AEH
BIzE®R MARREBIMNERRES S RkH
BEBRBENET UERAQRFTNEIRERAA
AABEEFANEREERTBREN -AARE
BTEEERREERASESNNZTAED21KEE
FED2.7EAKREDIIFEETHRTE °

Annual Report 20225 #



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

\"_Q\Aiﬁi

In addition to the Review, undertaken by the external
professional consultants, the external auditor also assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. Where
appropriate, the external auditor’ s recommendations are adopted
and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls
will be made.

The Board has received a confirmation from the management
of the Company on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

To facilitate the management and standardisation of internal
operation, the Company has regulations in place that specify
the responsibilities and scopes of anti-corruption works. Anti-
corruption policy has been adopted and all employees of the
Group have been required to strictly abide them. To encourage
employees to report the improprieties they found or suspected, the
Company has established appropriate whistleblowing procedures
pursuant to its whistleblowing policy so as to provide a secure
and fully confidential environment for employees to report the
improprieties that they genuinely concerned.

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.
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The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy and is reviewed by the Audit Committee on a annual
basis. The objective of shareholders communication policy is to
provide our shareholders and potential investors with equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company. The Directors consider that the shareholders’
communication policy of the Company is satisfactory in terms of
its implementation and effectiveness.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual and special general meeting,
annual report, interim report, various notices, announcements and
circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 17 June 2022 (2022
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of
the 2022 AGM in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of retiring Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the
Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee, and representatives of
McMillan Woods attended the 2022 AGM to answer questions of
shareholders of the Company. Procedure for conducting a poll
were explained by the chairman of the 2022 AGM at the 2022
AGM.
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Attendance of individual Directors at general BREER=-ZE_—FRRAENLEERR :
meeting(s) in 2022:

2022 AGM
—E=-=

BRRBFEAE
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Wu Ming Gai (Chairman) v
AR EEE(FE)
Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan b 4
BR &k iR 2 +
Mr. Chau Wai Hing v
JE) 12 B 5 A
Non-Executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy b 4
|mHAPCAE
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen b 4
ERAELE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYHTES
Ms. Chan Man Yi b 4
PR &R L+
Ms. Leung Yin Ting v
RF I L+
Mr. Wong Sze Lok 4
=RESLYE

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will ARRMRERRBAFAEGHKR_TE=_=F<A

be held on 30 June 2023 which will be conducted by way of poll. ST AET WHRERERATNET -
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders of the Company
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company shall
be held in each year as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall
be called a special general meeting (“SGM”). Set out below are
procedures by which shareholders may (a) convene a SGM; (b)
put forward enquires to the Board; and (c) put forward proposals
at general meetings. The procedures are subject to the Bye-Laws
and applicable legislation and regulation.

Shareholder(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying not
less than 10% of the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, on a vote per share basis in the share
capital of the Company, shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Directors or the company
secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
business specified in such requisition and add agenda of
the meeting so convened; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention
of the Board.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote
at general meetings of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written
request to the attention of the company secretary of the
Company signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as Director is available on
the Company’s website.
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The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividends to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2862 8555 Fax: (852) 2865 0990

Shareholders and potential investors may, at any time, direct
enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings. for the attention of the
Board.

The new Bye-Laws was adopted by way of a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 17 June 2022. The new Bye-
Laws is available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 73 to 80.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 159,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BY AR E

E~<E
FHAERXSERERAQT

(RABHEZMAZIRERZFEZFRL A7)
EERR

RMEEZIENESIEI59H FEH XS 2]
ERAG(TEARD REKBA T(LAT%‘%@F;W
BDHSRAUBHRE  UEAVMEBERREBER
—F+-A=t+—"HHBAEFBREE %ziz
BEFEMNGEB=REMEEKER  SEeESY
BERMNGARERER  URGEAUBHREMNF -
BRIZEHAHREBE -

BMRR ZEGEVBRRERBER S
AEZEe((HESTENZES ) Bhmr(BERM
SEAND(TERPBREEN DEEMRAFHR
BERER-_FT_—_Ft_A=t—HNHaUH
MAEBEZBLFENGAMBRARGERE
B YEERBFBRAKGINDNEEREZRR

HMERBEEBEAMAGEMA(EBETE
AN EBEEA])ETET - HMEZFE]T
AENEFCEABREGIRBORABAGRS B R
i‘%ﬁk#ﬁ’]ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ"qﬂ{?ﬁ*ifﬁﬁ°$E}J§i55%§‘§+

fAgEMEEXETEE AIJ(AT R <7
A1) - HwMBIR BEEE - IEE?T?E'JEPE’JEW
BREREME - HAHEE  RAMESHESERER
ARLEEHWREMOBETER REER -

Annual Report 20225



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

(i) Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments; and

(ii) Allowance of the Group’s loan notes under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model.

Key Audit Matter
BEETBE

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgment and estimates in note 5, relevant disclosures in notes
7, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments as
a key audit matter due to the degree of complexity involved in
valuing the financial assets, the significance of the judgment
and estimates made by the management and the subjectivity in
determination of Level 3 financial instruments’ fair value given
the lack of availability of market-based data. The estimation
process requires management to make assumptions that include,
amongst others, volatility, percentage of gold price and discount
for lack of control. The fair value of financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss and fair value are classified as Level 3,
amounted to approximately HK$24,903,000 and HK$24,445,000
respectively as at 31 December 2022 as disclosed in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements. The valuations of the
aforesaid Level 3 financial instruments were performed by an
independent valuer.
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How dur audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our audit procedures in relation to this matter included:

HMPBEREEEMNEFREFER

— Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and the processes performed by the
independent valuer and the management’s review
process of the work of the independent valuer
with respect to the valuation of Level 3 financial
instruments;

— BRBUMEMATHLERMNMER  AREEE
HEVHEMBFEF="EReRITAKEILENEHNAE

2

— Evaluating the competence, integrity and
independence of the independent valuer; and their
experience in conducting valuation of similar financial
instruments; and
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ERENEE BRMWBEANATEERAREETEE

Obtaining the respective independent valuation
reports and discussed with management about
the valuation of the Level 3 financial instruments,
with the assistance with the valuation specialists:
(i) reviewed the appropriateness of the valuation
techniques and assumptions based on the industry
knowledge; (ii) tested the appropriateness of the
key inputs by independently checking to the relevant
external market data and/or relevant historical
financial information; (iii) inquired and assessed the
rationale of the management’s judgment on the key
inputs, which are specific to the respective investees;
and (iv) reviewed the accuracy of the calculations
on the valuation model and appropriateness of the
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements
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Key Audit Matter
ERENEE

Allowance of the Group’s loan notes under the expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgment and estimates in note 5 and its relevant disclosures in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the allowance of loan notes as a key audit matter
due to the significant degree of management’s judgment in
assessing their ECL.

BN ERZBENRERD AERETEE  DHREERERT
HHEBEHEEEER Y REKXNHE -

The Group adopts the ECL model to assess the impairment of
the Group's loan notes. Complex models and assumptions are
used in the measurement of ECL for loan notes at amortised
cost, for example:
AEERBAEREEBERL NG AEEERZRRERE -
REHK AT ECERERNAREEERTERAEMER X
BR& - Pl :

» Significant increases in credit risk — The selection of criteria
for identifying significant increases in credit risk is highly
dependent on judgment and may have a significant impact
on the ECL for financial assets with longer remaining periods
to maturity;

- GERARBEEZLA — EERECRARAREBEZENNRERES
FERBHE VYR FEIRRNEREENTERERE
KEERTE:

* Models and parameters — Inherently complex models are
used to measure ECL. Modelled parameters have numerous
inputs e.g., default rate and the parameter estimation
involves many judgments and assumptions; and

- RANZ2H —RKAEMRLGEERERAAL - ER28E
REBAAND(FIMENEX) BR2EMEFT PRI Z ABR IR
&Rk

» Forward-looking information — Expert judgment is used to
create macroeconomic forecasts and to consider the impact
on ECL under multiple economic scenarios given different
weights.

. HIEMER —EREXHNEHRBLCHETERLN  ZETR
KEBESEST HEBEABRNTE -

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWBEANATEERAREETEE

EEFEMEBERBANCELA(BHEEEER)EXT
HY R

HABHN AR m E B2 IHE - BT iE5A 49 5 62 ) B 71
1EET AR B G EIHRE N 2178 89 16 B 5 5F -

Our audit procedures in relation to this matter included:

BMAEBEEENEFEFEE

— Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL including
the staging criteria applied by management;

— FHHEEEES  WBREBRGFGEBEEEENE
RATZEH(BREEEEFZAND B EERE) RS
i REER L

— Selecting samples to assess the reasonableness of
management judgments on whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
and whether credit impairment has occurred;

— HERTUNGEEHENGEYE FHEERRE
CEVEEREBEELANRREELEEERME

— Evaluating, with assistant with valuation specialists,
the ECL model and the assumptions and parameters
including ECL stages, probability of default, exposure
at default and forward looking factors such as
macroeconomic factor forecasts and the probability
weighted economic scenarios used in the ECL model,;

— EHEZZRBHTAGEREEEEER  REM2
B O BEEHEEBEBR ZHHX  EHEBRA
AEMERER flINEZBSEERBAMESREEEE
AR AR R NELEER

— Performing testing of key data sources used for the
ECL computation, on a sample basis, by evaluating
the Group’s supporting documents and analysis, and,
where applicable, checking to external data sources;
and

— BBETEAEERNIFHXHNDOMN - AMmET A
REBEEBEAENERBBERETIR  LEE
BEERTRENNBEE : &

— Inspecting settlements after the financial year end
relating to the loan notes as at 31 December 2022, if
any.

— RUBEEEREREERH T __F+_RA="1—
HHNERRBEEEBER(NE) -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BY AR E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body in accordance with section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

BY AR E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Practising Certificate Number P0O6633

24/F, Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeBRsERkEtEZEKESR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C& —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M &t FTER FET
Gross proceeds from disposals of HERXSESBMERE
trading securities 4858 8,880 9,629
Revenue A 9 4,552 7,696
Others income H b g A 10 91 —
Other losses HuEsE 11 (44,529) (26,907)
Impairment losses for loan notes ERERRBEEBRE (432) (1,801)
Other operating expenses E 48 & 5 2 (5,702) (5,979)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 12 (2,059) (1,652)
Loss before tax RR Bt A &5 18 13 (48,079) (28,643)
Income tax Fr 15 % 14 — —
Loss for the year FEEE (48,079) (28,643)
Other comprehensive income, net of H i 2 & W (NBRB ) :
tax:
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EET D EZ B
profit or loss: HIEE -
— Fair value loss on financial —BRAAEREMEER
assets at fair value through @A R (MR ARER
other comprehensive income HE2mkassik])
(“FVTOCI”) ZERMEENARE
& 18 (642) (5,055)
Loss and total comprehensive ARATEEAEBEFRER
income for the year attributable to R2EWZHARE
owners of the Company (48,721) (33,698)
Loss per share (HK$) EREBA(ER)
Basic EZ PN 16 (0.10) (0.07)
Diluted 5 (0.10) (0.07)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBAARRE
At 31 December 2022
R-ZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Loan notes

Current assets
Deposits and prepayments
Loan notes

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Due from securities brokers
Bank balances

Current liabilities

Due to securities brokers
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Promissory notes

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Promissory notes

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Net asset value per share
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau Wai Hing

R
Director

EF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

Notes

Hy it

18
19(a)
21

20
21

22

23
24

25
26
19(b)
27

19(b)
27

29

32

As at

31 December

2022
N-EE=-=

+=ZA=+—H

HK$’000

TR

202

202

791
49,510

54,202

24,903
2,224
2,046

133,676

1,207
208
662

2,077
131,599

131,801

13,500
13,500
118,301
51,801
66,500

118,301

HK$0.23# T

B1E159E M AW ERERBAE
A+t BHERERETER

Wu Ming Gai

ik R e
Director

EF

As at
31 December

486
74,800

75,287

282
3,437

61,938

25,545
145
1,635

92,982

1,087
2,066

282
6,723

10,158
82,824

158,111

208
13,500

13,708
144,403
43,167
101,236

144,403

HK$0.337% 7T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAREAES
Financial
assets at
Share Share Contributed FVTOCI  Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve losses reserve Total
RAREREM
2EMESIRZ
k& R EE B4ES CREENRE ZitER L @3t
(b)) 31(b)i) 31(b)(ii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Tin T i TEL TEL A
At 1 January 2021 RZBZ-F-F-H 35,973 4,313 107,918 12,100 (34,554) 126,777 162,750
Loss and total comprehensive ENBERZERAE
expenses for the year — — - (5,055) (28,643) (33,698) (33,698)
Issue of shares on placement RERETRA
(note 29) (H3k20) 719 8,274 - - - 8,274 15,468
Cost of issuing new shares under ~ RELEXTHRHER
placement (note 29) (P #E29) = (117) - - - (117) (117)
Changes in equity for the year FERERS 7,19 8,157 - (5,055) (28,643) (25,541) (18,347)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%+-A=1-H 43,167 49470 107918 7,045 (63,197) 101,236 144,403
At 1 January 2022 RZBZZ%-8-H 43,167 49,470 107,918 7,045 (63,197) 101,236 144,403
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERAE
expenses for the year - - - (642) (48,079) (48,721) (48,721)
Issue of shares on placement RERETRA
(note 29) (H3E29) 8,634 14,158 - - - 14,158 22,792
Cost of issuing new shares under B EREXAHRHER
placement (note 29) (M #£29) - (173) - - - (173) (173)
Changes in equity for the year FERERS 8,634 13,985 - (642) (48,079) (34,736) (26,102)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Zf#+-A=1-H 51,801 63,455 107,918 6,403 (111,276) 66,500 118,301
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

VAN L=

AN = IE,%/}“,E%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value loss/(gain)
on trading securities
Loss on disposal of certain financial
assets of:
— a loan note in exchange for
listed securities
— a loan note in exchange for
an overseas loan note
— a loan note in exchange for
unlisted securities

Impairment losses on loan notes

Operating loss before working capital

changes

Increase in financial assets of FVTPL

(Increase)/decrease in deposits
and prepayments

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from securities brokers

Decrease in amounts due to securities
brokers

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accruals

Cash used in operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Notes
B &t

RETHEENRERE
B 5% B 5 48
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FEHA

1 75 PR AR
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EREEEFE
ROGBHFZRAREEERE/
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ERRE

— ARXBBINERREN
ERERE

— RARZBIELTESDN
ERRE

ERERBERR

33(a)(i)

33(a)(ii)

33(a)(iii)
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JRE Y 78 55 A8 40 ROR
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& 15 58 5 AR 42 FRIRBL
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COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

2022
—E-—F
HK$°000
FET
(48,079)
(4,333)
2,059

284

37,578

5,783
432

(6,275)
(5,397)

(509)
(2,079)
(1,087)

(859)

(16,206)
2,400
(77)

(13,883)

2021
—E-—4F
HK$’000
FHET
(28,643)

(7,525)
1,652

3
280

12,937

10,507

3,383

1,801

(5,605)
(15,884)

351
656
(797)

1,335

(19,944)

(19,944)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Cash flows from financing activities RETBHZRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares on BLEREITIRM BTG RIE
placement 22,792 15,468
Cost of issuing new shares under BEREZRTHROER
placement (173) (117)
Principal portion of lease payments HEREAH D (282) (287)
Repayment of promissory notes ENEERER (6,420) —
Interest paid B A E (1,605) (1,377)
Finance lease charges paid ENMEREE (18) (13)
Net cash from financing activities RMETBHFMEREFHE 14,294 13,674
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESEEEN CRD)
cash equivalents FH 411 (6,270)
Cash and cash equivalents FNBRekBeER
at beginning of year 1,635 7,905
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESREEEE
end of year 2,046 1,635
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEEZEI M
Bank balances RITHE &% 2,046 1,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=

—E- o+ A=+ —HIEFE

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and continued
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is Room 14A,
Fortune House, 61 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong. The principal activities of the Company are investments
in securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and
unlisted investments with a potential for earnings growth and
capital appreciation.

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Company may, at its sole discretion, invest in any
securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants, money
market instruments, bank deposits, currency investments,
commodities, options, convertible securities, futures
contracts and precious metals or any other forms
of investments in securities which would enable the
Company to achieve good income or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Company may, for hedging purposes only, buy, write
or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or traded
options on its underlying investments. The Company
may also buy or sell futures contracts on stock indices or
shares (if any) as a means to hedge against adverse price
movements of its investments.

(iii

~

in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the Company
may enter into forward interest rate agreements, interest
rates and US treasury bond futures contracts and
interest rate swaps. The Company may also, for hedging
purpose only, purchase and write (sell) put or call options
or options on futures on interest rates. The Company
will only engage in transactions in options and futures
which are traded on a recognised securities or futures
exchange.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or distribution will
be placed in bank deposits in any currency, obligations
of the United States or Hong Kong governments, their
respective agencies or instrumentalities, or securities and
other instruments denominated in any currency issued
by various governments or international development
agencies.

The Company may not:

(i) either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control of
any company or other entity in which it invests or controls
more than 30% (or such other percentage as may from
time to time be specified in the Takeovers Code as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result, more
than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at the date
of such investment would be invested in any one such
company or other entity.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which in collective term includes all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
discussed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs and
amendments that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group.

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS 3

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018—
2020

The application of the above revised IFRSs in the current
period had no material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position.

The Group has not applied amendments to standards
and interpretation that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2022.
The amendments to standards and interpretation include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 — Definition of
Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred Tax
Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability in
a Sales and Leaseback

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on
or after

1 January 2024

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2024

To be determined by the
IASB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial assets that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=t+—AL=EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHEE(HA)
(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (b) ShEEHT & (&)
(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s (b) % E 5 x AN B X 3 R A

financial statements (Continued) (748,
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair LAARBEHENUIINEGTENFEEE T
values in foreign currencies are translated using the HEEREANEEEANEERNTE -
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item EEEUEEEN K BBEEMSE
is recognised in other comprehensive income, AW mP R W Ek B EE
any exchange component of that gain or loss is RERBOEEMEZERSPRER - &
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a FEBUHEENREBBEEER R
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in R MR S BB R E A E S KA S
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or EEZFER -

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Property, plant and equipment (c) %  BERR®E
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the TEHEEVMBRRARAN - WE - BERZENU
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less AR EBEBERFTITERBEZRT RERKIE
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent (mBEIFHE -

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16. In such cases, the
group took advantage of the practical expedient set
out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the financial
asset at FVTOCI reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=

P ZHF+ZA=+—HILFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities including amounts due to securities
brokers, other payables, accruals and promissory notes
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

A EMEERAGREES AR EE SR

7 e

AT 68 B 12 & 0 Hh 3R RS 5 (B 98 T RS 4 B P
B 287 19 A6k 1 S5 W BRI 4 B ) & FER AR B
ERT TSR -

B 8 Bh T5 1B /3 B 22 AR B S S B 48 0 B Ui
183 R A AN 5= B 12 (1 B0 B B 75 IR T 3 4 R
RAEBKA  REKREKRFRRRIERP
MR RS2 RIEMKAL -

FIEHEE AR BNRERIBNEN -

HREEMARIEEFTFRNERB GFTE - B
MATBERTER WﬁwmﬂﬂTH ESy=)
MBS ETIRESTATEMFEEANE
AW ER T HEER - B ABED
ERFERTATENNIEL - REERE R
BREBERBEEREHRECHITREL LB
MITHRERTEHE -

BEEREERNGAVBERRPEENAEDN
REeBEANTE AR TS EREES
AR HOEEETHER - —RERT
FERMNGEREEREENEEHBEAE
HF R - BT BEEE X ERA LIS E
MAZATENESEE=%  KABHBER
B AR A B B IS R SRR M FE A B AT S FE A
@EW%MEMGW%§M&§$Emﬁ@
REX BT EEATSECL I ES
%ﬂﬁm#miAmx%¢%Eméﬁﬂ%
BEONBEER TEEN A THRZSEE
Mmatfs -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including other deposits, loan notes, due from
securities brokers and bank balances). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group always recognises ECL for deposits, loan
notes and due from securities brokers, and measures
the ECL for portfolios of deposits, loan notes and due
from securities brokers that share similar economic risk
characteristics. The ECL on these assets are estimated
using an analysis of assets by risk level of customers and
apply a probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses
within the relevant risk type. The probability-weighted
estimates of the credit losses is determined based on
the default rate from external international credit rating
agency, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from financial analysts
and governmental bodies, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrate otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default
(i.e. no default history); (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has
external credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an external rating
of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade and loan receivables,
when the amounts are past due over one year, whichever
is earlier. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised directly
in profit or loss.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
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If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

Where lifetime ECL is measured to cater for cases
where evidence of significant increase in credit risk at
the individual instrument level may not yet be available.
The financial instruments are The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash

equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

Classification and measurement of financial assets
depends on the results of the solely payment of principal
and interest test and the business model test. The Group
determines the business model at a level that reflects
how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated
and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed
and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Group monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective
of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether
the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business
model and so a prospective change to the classification of
those assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

As mentioned in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 20% equity interest
of an Anguilla incorporated private entity, Perfect Path
Limited (the “Perfect Path”). Despite the Group holds
20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, the unlisted
equity investment is designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI. The Group does not have significant influence
over Perfect Path as (i) the Group has no right to be
represented in the board of directors of Perfect Path;
and (ii) the remaining equity interest, being 80% equity
interest of Perfect Path is owned by another single
shareholder other than the Group.

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unlisted investments of the Group designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL have been valued
under market approach using the unobservable inputs
such as prices and other relevant information generated
by market transaction, volatility, percentage of gold
price and discount of lack of control. These valuations
require the management to make such estimation, and
hence they are subject to uncertainty. Whilst the Group
considers these valuations are the best estimates, the
ongoing Russia-Ukraine War and disruptions in energy
and commodity markets have results in greater market
volatility and may affect the business of the investee.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. The fair value of the unlisted investments
at FVTOCI and FVTPL at 31 December 2022 were
approximately HK$24,903,000 and HK$24,445,000
respectively (2021: HK$25,545,000 and HKS$Nil
respectively). Further details are set out in notes 22 and
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes provision for impairment of loan notes
based on assumptions about risk of default, expected
loss rates, loan note with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed ECL individually. The Group uses
judgments in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the ECL calculation, based on the relevant
default rate with reference from external international
credit rating agency, existing market conditions as well as
forward—looking estimates at the end of reporting period.
The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model
is measured at the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

During the year, impairment losses of approximately
HK$432,000 (2021: HK$1,801,000) had been recognised
on loan notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=

—E- o+ A=+ —HIEFE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The board of directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as certain of the Group’s bank balances and listed equity
securities are denominated in United State dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited and insignificant as long
as the HK$ remains pegged to the US$. This analysis is
performed on the same basis for the prior year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

As set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investments securities were
designated at financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group’s investments in equity securities are exposed
to equity price risk. The directors manage this exposure
by monitoring the change of market prices of the equity
from time to time, and by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk. As at 31 December
2022, if the fair value of the Group’s investments
designated at financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI
had been 5% higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss before tax would
decreasel/increase by approximately HK$3,955,000 (2021:
HK$4,374,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amount of deposits, loan notes, due from
securities brokers and bank balances included in the
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to concentrations of
credit risk. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
significant concentrations of credit risk as the Group’s
100% (2021: 100%) of the carrying amount of loan notes
were subscribed from two issuers (2021: three issuers).

The total loan notes by geographical region are as
follows:

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

e BEXRER BURIFLLRARET
RHBEMBRARAFENEIEBR/ANE
BEEHEREENRAGERR -

rEEARETEERBREFHNRAR - R
T —F+-_F=+—H HRAEEER
ZREEEMN100%(ZZF=— : 100%) %
BETAZTZ—F  ZBBTA)RE
rEEFERBRSEEF -

BB SWERZREABENT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHER FET

By geographical region i = &l 5
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) REARLRME(THE]) 20,000 47,000
Netherlands el | 30,000 30,000
50,000 77,000

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated
its finance team to develop and assign the Group’s credit
risk grading to categories exposures according to their
degree of risk of default. With refer to the public available
financial information and the historical repayment records
to determine the counter parities whether had significant
increase in credit risk individually. The Group’s exposure
and the credit rating of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
The ECL rates are determined based on default rate
from external international credit rating agency and were
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
Loan Notes’ issuers to redeem their Loan Notes upon
maturity.

As the Group’s based on the default rate from
external internation credit rating agency is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework

comprises the following categories: Al

Category Definition

Bl Bx

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts

RuF RBGEFEORKIKE - BI04 M@ BARIE

Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition

7 5t =B R 8 Y46 TR LA SR K g 1 hn

In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired

ER FREBXBPEEFERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

g5 ERBRPAEBRARTREMBEEE  FAEEBEEER EEX

For deposits, the directors of the Company make
individual assessments on the recoverability of deposits.
There was no impairment of deposits under ECL was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021.

Y Bl 5% 18
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Basis of recognising ECL

FHFEBENRREE

12m ECL

T EAEHREEEE

Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

FHEREERE EEERE

Lifetime ECL credit impaired
HEBEEEE EERE

Amount is written off
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan notes
as at 31 December:

BNER (R H)

Current (not past due)

BN ER (R H0)

Current (not past due)

Expected loss rates are based on default rate from
external international credit rating agency. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
loan notes.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities brokers is
limited because the counterparties are well-established
securities broker firms in Hong Kong which are subject
to compliance requirement under Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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TREHREBAEEAR T -_A=1T—RHZE
AEBEERBRLAREEBENERN

2022 2022 2022
—E_- —E—-— —_E-=
Expected loss  Gross carrying
rate amount Loss allowance
EHEEX BERHEE BEEE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
% FET FET
2.96% 51,021 (1,511)
2021 2021 2021
—E-—%F —ET-—F ===

Expected loss

Gross carrying

rate amount Loss allowance

T8 B /B 18 = RERHE A & B A
% HK$’000 HK$’000

% FE&T FHET

2.96% 80,627 (2,390)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Stage 1
F1RER
HK$’°000
FET

Loan notes and interest ERERKEK
receivables, gross ME BT 30,903
Less: Loss allowance W BB EE (388)
Net carrying amount BREEFE 30,515
Stage 1
FAREE
HK$’000
FH& T

Loan and interest EREBKERK
receivables, gross M E#EE 30,002
Less: Loss allowance W EBEEE (81)
Net carrying amount BREEF & 29,921

The decrease in loss allowance on loan notes during the
year ended 31 December 2022 due to the derecognised
of ECL upon disposal of LN1 in exchange for unlisted
investment. Detail of the disposal set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

As at 31 December 2022
R=—B-—£+=A=+-8

Stage 2 Stage 3
FE2M B FEIWER
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR
20,118 —
(1,123) —
18,995 —

As at 31 December 2021
R-—ZF-—%+-A=+—8

Stage 2 Stage 3
FE2ME R FIMRER
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET THET
50,625 —
(2,309) —
48,316 —

Total
#at
HK$’000
FTER

51,021
(1,511)

49,510

Total
HEt
HK$’000
FET

80,627
(2,390)

78,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Movement in the allowances for loan notes and interest
receivables measured at amortised cost:

12-month ECL

1218 B F8 58
FEES
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2021 MN-ZT - —F
—H—H 589
Transfer from stage 1to  F1EREHK T
stage 2 F2MER (589)
Provision for ECLs BEHEEEERE 81
Derecognised upon o R AR IE FERR
disposal —
At 31 December 2021 and R _-_Z - — 4
1 January 2021 +-A=+—H
FM_T_—%F
—H—H 81
Derecognised upon o R AR I FERR
disposal —
Provision for ECLs BHEEEEER 307
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-—F
+=ZA=+—H 388

The Group’s loan notes, amounts due from/to securities
brokers, lease liabilities and promissory notes bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject
to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s cash flow exposure to interest-rate risk
arises from its bank deposits. These bank deposits bear
interests at floating rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest
rate risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will not have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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o8 PUESE T} P )T SR
88 :

General approach

/.

Lifetime

ECL credit
Lifetime ECL impaired Total

2HMEY 2YPENLEE i

FEFE FEEERE Bt
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET FHT
12,112 — 12,701
589 — —
1,720 — 1,801
(12,112) — (12,112)
2,309 — 2,390
(1,311) — (1,311)
125 — 432
1,123 — 1,511
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=t+—AL=EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MKERERE(E)
(e) Liquidity risk (e) 7 B £ & b
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBHOBRRATETHERNBLEHRREEHE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it SER CUBREAFRENRSHE AW
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity TEEBELRARHESTE -

requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEEMNFETESHEBERBESORITRR
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial EREMEMBIBOTMOT -
liabilities is as follows:

On demand
and less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years
REXRR
PR—F —ZC=F —ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET FHEIT
At 31 December 2022 R-—E-Z
+=ZA=+—-8H
Other payables and accruals H At BT IR R
Bt &R 1,207 - —
Lease liabilities HEB&E 213 — —
Promissory notes A E 1,028 4,414 10,800
2,448 4,414 10,800
At 31 December 2021 R-Z=-—F
+t=ZHA=+-H
Due to securities brokers JESF B F 42 5RIA 1,087 = =
Other payables and accruals H fh FE A~ 5B R
FEst &R 2,066 — —
Lease liabilities HEB®E 300 213 —
Promissory notes AT E 7,911 1,028 15,214
11,364 1,241 15,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

2022 2021
—_E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Financial assets: cRMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost BBRGERAGFTENEREE 53,834 80,071
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEREZFIERZ
DRELEE 54,202 61,938
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAREREMAZEKEYEREZ
TREE 24,903 25,545
Financial liabilities: TREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost EESRNATENSRARE 15,369 23,376
Lease liabilities HEBE 208 490

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

HAVBMRERAMRRAEESBEE N
CREBENRASREXOESANARE -

REREMS2EEAFBERELENERFRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

AEENBRRASESHBREZERAEHERNE

level 1 is based on quoted bid price in an active market.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or MEESZHNBEHARAEAREL =AE AN
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. fE{a] — (& -
2022
—_Eg=-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—BX EFE-EBIR E=ZEBR PR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FH&xT FH&xT FH& T
Recurring fair value REMERAABETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RAfBEREBZPIER
ZERMEE
Listed equity securities in Hong &% K& E B F mi#E s
Kong and the United States E 5 29,757 — — 29,757
Unlisted equity securities in FEFLLTERES
United States — — 24,445 24,445
Financial assets at FVTOCI RAREREMEZE
KEFREZSRMEE
Unlisted equity investments FELmERES —_ —_ 24,903 24,903
Total recurring fair value KEHERARBEFNELE
measurements 29,757 — 49,348 79,105
2021
—ET-—fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—ER —EBik FE=ZEX 1w
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHT FHT
Recurring fair value REMRAARETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RAAREREBERP IR
ZEMEE
Listed equity securities held for AX S mMF AN LT
trading at market value listed  #HES - EMIHE
in Hong Kong and the United B REERERL
States ™ 61,938 — — 61,938
Financial assets at FVTOCI RAAREREMEME
U 2% 51 EEZQEQEE
Unlisted equity investments FELEMERE S — — 25,545 25,545
Total recurring fair value KEHEARBEFERE
measurements 61,938 — 25,545 87,483
The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL classified as DEEF—ERANEARBERERFIEZ

ERMEENRAREDREGBT S L KR

B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. R REFE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) BE=Z=BXRXRAREFENEENHEK
based on Level 3
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, REBEEZE_ZT__FR-ZF=-—F+=H
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3 to T+T—HLEFE YEF=-EANEMEE

other levels of hierarchy.

The following table presents the movements in Level 3 TRINGRAFERN AEBE=BXITA
instruments of the Group during the year. HEE o
2022
—E-=
Equity
Unlised equity investments
securities held for designated at
trading in United financial assets at
States FVTOCI Total
EER
BOAE
REM2E
RARREMERN 51 2 51 B
BRES ZEREE
EEELT MESRE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT TERT
At 1 January ®—RA—H — 25,545 25,545
Additions NE 24,445 — 24,445
Total gains or losses recognised ERRLBNENER
— in profit or loss (included in revenue and —RER(BERRAR
other gains and losses) Hiplz R EE) — — -
— in other comprehensive income —REM2ERR — (642) (642)
At 31 December R+tZA=+—H 24,445 24,903 49,348
2021
i
Equity investments
designated at
financial assets at
FVTOCI
EER
BARE
REMEE
e 23 51 B
ZEMEAE
HEREE
HK$'000
TERT
At 1 January ®—A—AH 30,600
Total gains or losses recognised ERERBKEXER
— in profit or loss (included in revenue and —RER(BERRARE MG REE)
other gains and losses) —
— in other comprehensive income —REMEERR(FX) (5,055)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—FH 25,545

Annual Report 2022F 3

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=t+—AL=EE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and

inputs used in fair value measurements at 31

December:

The Group’s directors are responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value

measurements.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged independent valuation experts with recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to

perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

FZERAAENE

Description Valuation technique
S fhER

Assets

BE

Financial asset at FVTOCI
BAREREMZEAREIR

Unobservable inputs

AABREA

DX REFE(R)

(c) REAREEANGERRURR+ =

A=Z+-BAREFEREANMGER
1l A & A MH

AREBEEAEUEREABENEENAE
F£=

ARAEE B BRAREFE -

BRE=-EXRARENE AKECERA
ERAEREREROKBNBLGEEER
#EITHE -

Fair value
M
2022 2021
—E--f CZZT--%
Effect on
fair value for
increase of
Range inputs HK$'000 HK$'000
BABBEMY

fE ARENTE TER TER

TREE
Unlisted equity investments Market Approach — Discount of lack of control 20%  Decrease 24,903 25,545
Comparable transaction BIRGIENE (2021: 20%) @4
method
FETERES Mk — AR 5% % of gold price 8.8% Increase
SEAAN (2021:7%) £
Cost of disposal 0.3%  Decrease
HEK R (2021:0.3%) F
Financial asset at FVTPL
BRAAEREM 2 EMETIEZ
CREE
Unlised equity securities Market Approach — Volatility 2.21%  Increase 24,445 —
Latest transaction method % & Em
EEHEGE S 5% —
BHMRPE

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For management purposes of resource association,
the Group’s business activity is organised into a single
operating segment, being investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with a potential for earnings growth and
capital appreciation. Accordingly, no operating segment
information to be presented.

The Company’s revenue is solely generated from, and
non-current assets are located in, Hong Kong and United
States, based on the location of the relevant Group
entities’ operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no dividend income from the Group’s unlisted
investments.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

HRERABERBN  AEBENEKEY
HERE-—REDE  MRENRERAES
ReEtmzERRREBRMERNERIE

BAMELETRE - Bt > B HEE
DEBERL o

REAEERABEENELMEL - AAA
WaeHREEBELEE  BERPBEED
fIREE o

REEZFT-_—_FR_FT=_—F+=A
=t+t—RHALEFER AEEMFELTHREL
EEERBKE -

2022 2021

—E- = —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Interest income from loan notes EREZEENF WA 4,333 7,525
Dividend income from trading securities fETFEZ AR EREZREIEZ

designated at FVTPL R 5 BHFAFREBLA 219 171

4,552 7,696
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Government grants (Note) BIS AL (fa2) 72 =
Sundry income IR A 19 —
91 —
Note: Bt -
Government grants in respect of the wage subsidy which was granted BEBBRMRMEZIFHEIE T T & #8618 B8 A EUS
under The Government of Employment Support Scheme in Hong Kong AR AEBEDABBREER TUER - ZER
were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant granting R ERERIREREINENS -
criteria. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these government grants.
2022 2021
—E=-= —ZE - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Unrealised fair value losses on financial #ZARBEREBZFRIEZESHEEDN
assets at FVTPL: REBRAREEE
— listed securities — EmEH (37,578) (12,937)
Net realised losses on disposals of BEARERESTIRZEHEEN
financial assets at FVTPL: B8 & BB FE
— listed securities — EWEH (1,168) (80)
Net losses on financial assets at FVTPL & AR EREZFIE 2 MEE
B 18 5 (38,746) (13,017)
Loss on disposals of certain financial HETHETERMEEZEE :
assets of:
— a loan note in exchange for listed — ARZXMLETELFNERRE
securities — (10,507)
— a loan note in exchange for a loan — ARXREFREBNERRR
note — (3,383)
— a loan note in exchange for unlisted — ARRBRIELTELFNEREIR
securities (5,783) —
(5,783) (13,890)
(44,529) (26,907)

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T-_—F+-A=+—B1ItFE

.FINANCE COSTS 12. 8 B &R
2022 2021
—EC-CfF —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Imputed interest on promissory notes ANENHEER S 1,964 1,456
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 18 13
Interest on other borrowings EH fth & KA B 77 183
2,059 1,652
LOSS BEFORE TAX 13.BRBLAT S B
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging the BREAIEEEHNER N5 S BEER
following:
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration % S AN B & 350 350
Management fees BEE 535 1,309
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BMERIEITE
equipment 1 3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 284 280
Employee benefits expenses included EEGFHZ(BREEEHE) :
directors’ remuneration:
— Salaries, allowance and benefits in — H & R REWERN
kind 1,175 1,416
— Contributions to defined contribution — 52 5 it 7% 5 2/ £t 7>
plan® 28 33
Total employee benefits expenses EERMAZBE 1,203 1,449

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 December 2022 and 2021
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding
contribution to the plan at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

m:%::iﬁfg:—¢+:ﬂz+—amﬁﬂ
EHE T & 2 BRI 5K AT A 1B R 2 R SR -

R-E - —FR -_E-_—F+-_A=+—HNE

AR ZA B 2K o

Annual Report 2022F 3

129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in HE—

the consolidated financial statements since the Group has no

estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 4 1 4R

2022 and 2021.

Reconciliation between income tax and the Group’s loss
before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below:

Loss before tax

Notional tax on loss before tax,
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Income tax

s EAEBEiIZ
HREZWOT -
2022
—E-—F
HK$°000
FHEx
Bx i AT & 18 (48,079)
BRERBE 2 BERBRESNEH
FHRE16.5% (T ——4F : 16.5%)
ERC] (7,933)
ABEME A ENALI IRBETE
373
AR A R T 728 (12)
RERNBEEORE R 7,501
AERELHEZENRBTE
71

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

FER-_EFE-_—F+-_A=+—HI
if-mﬁ$%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%¥ﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁ

AMBHMRAGIREBTBNGSHEME -

BRABERFEZHRBRAIBE L

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FHET

(28,643)

(4,726)

243

4,565

(82)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

15.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 15. B 5 2 % M
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: (a) ESHMAFHBENT :

2022

e —

—_— = — —

Contributions

to defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances plan Total
REMK
e HeRER PRI wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHER FTHER FTHER FTHET
Executive Directors HITES
Wu Ming Gai s E — 151 8 159
Chan Carman Wing Yan( B K RO — 119 6 125
Chau Wai Hing A& & — 242 12 254
Non-executive Directors FBTES
William Keith Jacobsen EEH 151 — — 151
Wong Chung Yan Sammy® =EHCO 82 — — 82
Independent non-executive BIYEHTES
Directors
Chan Man Yi PR G 126 — — 126
Leung Yin Ting Rz 126 — — 126
Wong Sze Lok BERE 126 — — 126
611 512 26 1,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Fees
e
HK$’000
FAET
Executive Directors HITESR
Wu Ming Gai ke —
Chan Carman Wing Yan® BR Sk RO =
Chau Wai Hing ke =
Non-executive Directors FYTES
William Keith Jacobsen EERH 151
Chen Albert® bR HE 1@ 59
Wong Chung Yan Sammy® BH L 176
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
Directors
Chan Man Yi PR 126
Leung Yin Ting 2= 126
Jiang Qian® & #e 40
Wong Sze Lok ERE 87
765

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

(1 Chan Carman Wing Yan resigned as an executive director
and chief executive officer on 20 June 2022.

@ Wong Chung Yan Sammy retired as a non-executive director
on 17 June 2022.

@ Jiang Qian resigned as an independent non-executive
director on 23 April 2021.

@) Chen Albert resigned as a non-executive director on 23 April
2021.

Note: There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration or payment
for compensation for loss of services during the both
years.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

2021
—E-—F
Contributions
Salaries and to defined
allowances contribution plan Total
REMHER
e RER FHEIE R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT FTAT
151 8 159
252 13 265
165 8 173
— — 151
— — 59
— — 176
— — 126
— — 126
40
— — 87
568 29 1,362

EXFARMTEE2HFM R FRERE
BARREAGESEHABIRMB M AT -
EXPRERTEERBLINTEETZH
MR EEEEARRESEMAM

BMAMR—_ZEZ_—_FNA-+HBEIRTE
ERITHAH -

BERCR B —F XA T L HREERT
B

BN _E-_—FWNA-_+=ZHHIBLIHF
HITES o

REER T —FOH - +=HBEEEHR
TE=E -

et : MEALBEEBEEHREKAERRER

Men i BERERER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2021: five) Directors
whose emoluments were disclosed above.

During the year, there was no discretionary cash bonus
paid or payables to the Directors nor any of the five
highest paid individuals (2021: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transaction,
arrangement or contract

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement
and contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

15, E 2% M (&)

(b)

(c)

EEE&EEFAL
RERAFAEERERRFALTEBERLA(Z
T_—F RAR)EE HEHMEEHELEXH

=z

& ©

RER TEENRESTESINBRS
AR AERBEEFAT(ZE-—F : &) -

EXEXRS  ZHIASHTINERESR

BREFE T BRERMIAMAMBEEIN - RER
HFRETMER  BEFEARR/ELH
Hep—7 BARREEREEZNHEB N
EBPAFEERIMENERAER 2 AEE
EBZ2HEMBEARS  ZTHRAEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

el

Loss for the purposes of
basic loss per share

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning 7 £ #] 2 % 17 &) & i@ I&

of year
Effect of shares issued on placement BLERBETROMNTE
(note 29)

Weighted average number of ordinary SREXREEFTEFMAN LB

IntEF B

shares for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share

For the purpose of diluted loss per share, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as there were
no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The board of directors (the "Board") does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

ARRBEBEABREERERNBERRNATEEG

sty
=5
Ea

BRERBESEH A ER

(Kt7£29)

2022 2021
—E- = —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
(48,079) (28,643)
2022 2021
—E-= —EZ—F
000 000
TR T %
431,672 359,727
39,028 36,268
% &9
470,700 395,995
NERBEEEEmNS BHEZ_ZT__Fk=

——Ft= )EJ*‘T‘*HJJ:EF’EEEAIﬁ@E%
BEARNEE  MNYLESEE _T__FR_
T —F T A=t HLEFEINRNERER
BERTBFELAE -

Exg((25g ) TESMBE_T__FRh=
T —F+A=t+—HIEFERNE@MRS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

18.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 9% - HWEKRRKE

Office Furniture and

equipment fixtures Total
WAERE BRREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET TAT FAT
Cost N
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, WZE-_—%—H—H =%
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 ——%+-A=+—-H —%
ZZF-A-HARZE=Z=F
+-A=+—H 537 572 1,109
Accumulated depreciation E2RWE
At 1 January 2021 R—_EBE-_—F—H—H 533 572 1,105
Provided for the year FREE 3 — 3
At 31 December 2021 and R-BE-_—4F+-_A=+—H
1 January 2022 —E-_—-_##—H—H 536 572 1,108
Provided for the year FREE 1 — 1
At 31 December 2022 R—E-_—_F+=-A=+—H 537 572 1,109
Carrying amount BRME B
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-_—_F+=-A=+—8” — — —
At 31 December 2021 R-—ZTE-_—%+-fF=+—H 1 — 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 W-E-—fF—HA—8 197
Addition A= 569
Depreciation e (280)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-ZZB-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-_#%—HF—H 486
Depreciation e (284)
At 31 December 2022 R=-ZB-=5+=-A=+-—-H 202
Lease liabilities of approximately HK$208,000 (2021: RZZEZZFF+=ZA=+—H  2#ERHA
HK$490,000) are recognised with related right-of-use & B &49208,000/% 7t (=& = — 4 :490,000
assets of approximately HK$202,000 (2021: HK$486,000) Y or) KA B B A & E £9202,0007% 7T
as at 31 December 2022. The lease agreements do not (ZZ=——4 :486,000/87T) - BRHBAAEZFHE
impose any covenants other than the security interests WHEEETHNERERI - HE Tfi% THE
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased MEMEMEZE - HEEETEARBRE
assets may not be used as security for borrowing R o
purposes.
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FH& T
Depreciation expenses FREEENITEEZ R
on right-of-use assets 284 280
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEEBENANELXH (Bt A
(included in finance costs) AR A) 18 13
Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note HERS AL EBENFAGE S HRME
33(c). 33(c) °
For both years, the Group leases an office for its RMER  AEEHE-—RBRLAZARE
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term ZoHMEARNBEMEBMFEE L o K
of 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual ER EEHEE - BBEEENRBR LK
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and o RE B E G HR & AT S FTHEE 8
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing HERER KAGHERTET AN R
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group HIBITHARR ©

applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T-_—F+-A=+—B1ItFE

19.FAEEE (&)
(b) HEEE

Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
BEHERE BREHEERERE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F ZEBZZ-& —T-—%

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHER THEIT FER TET

Within one year —F A 213 300 208 282
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BREEEMSE) — 213 — 208
213 513 208 490
Less: Future finance charges W ARTBER N/A N/A
(5) (23) iE A N3 A
Present value of lease HERTRE
obligations 208 490 208 490
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 1218 B A 2 HA &9 f& 1<t
within 12 months (shown RBE(ERBAE
under current liabilities) T#ETR) (208) (282)
Amount due for settlement after  121# A 12 2| 23 &Y j& {~F 2B
12 months — 208

The weight average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities is 5.0% (2021: 5.04%).

All finance lease payables are denominated in HKS.

HRAREEAENMEFTHREEERINER
50%(=—Z = —4 :5.04%) °

MERMERERNRELAETAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=t+—AL=EE

20.DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20 Hitb BN RRTE - HERFBENR
2022 2021
—EsE=-= —_E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET
Other deposits H iz g 54 54
Prepayments T8 1+ 3 E 737 228
791 282
The financial assets included in the above balances are tiigpEREesNeREEATE - EIERAE
non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand RERKER - 1[/%}& 3T ERYR B GE A RN HE I8 T
and relate to receivables for which there was no recent history B H FE Uk TR 1R

of default and past due amounts.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no RBE-_ZE-_—_FK-_ZE-—F+-A=+—H
provision for impairment were made for 12m ECL on the LHEE  BEFEbRSERNI12EARREER
balances of other deposits. EEFRAERE -
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Issuer

BT

Shenzhen Huagin Agriculture Technology
Company Limited* (“LN1")

RYNEDRERRBER DA
([ExFEE1])

Yun Kang Data Technology (Shanghai)
Company Limited* (“LN2")
EREARR(LE)AERAA

([ExFERE2])

D5 Investment B.V. ("LN3")
D5 Investment B.V. ([ EFXZ#3])

Total
ok

(i)

(if)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Date

N BH

31 December 2022
“Z--%+ZR=+—H
31 December 2021
—Z--%+-A=1+-8

31 December 2022
ZE-%+ZR=+—8H
31 December 2021
“Z-—-%+-R=+—H

31 December 2022
ZE-%+ZR=+—H
31 December 2021
e

31 December 2022
ZE--Ff+ZA=+—-H
31 December 2021
“EZ-4%+ZA=1+-H

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had subscribed HK$ denominated loan note (the
“LN1") of principal value of HK$27,000,000 issued by
an independent third party which is a private entity
established in the PRC, Shenzhen Huaqin Agriculture
Technology Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in technological development of agricultural
products and biological products, with maturity period of
three years from date of issue. LN1 bears fixed interest at
8.5% per annum and is measured at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, LN1 was
served as the consideration in exchange for unlisted
securities of approximately HK$24,445,000, as disclosed
in note 22, which constitutes a disposal of LN1, and
resulting a loss on deemed disposal of approximately
HK$5,783,000 recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Subscription
amount

RELE
HK$'000
THET

27,000

20,000

20,000

30,000

30,000

50,000

77,000

(i)

(if)

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

Impairment
Interest loss recognised Carrying
receivables  during the year amount
REAFERER
EyHE WHESR fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TET TET
2,307 1,091 27,996
118 125 18,995
1,318 629 20,320
903 307 30,515
2 81 29,921
1,021 432 49,510
3,627 1,801 78,237

HE-_ZT_ZTZF+_A=+—HLEEE &
SEEREBTLEREZR(EREE1]) -
N4 {818 527,000,000 7T - B — EHR P E
R FLEEREBILIE=ZHCFRIEDLE
E¥RMBERAE  FERZRERNEYR
mE TR ) AT - HAIRRM /T A EARBET3
FHH - BEREBVLETFF R8.5%:E
P B RIZEHREKATE -

HE_Z-_—_F#+-_A=1t—HHEE &
REBAHERE - LUIREN4924,445,000/%5 7T
HFE LB 22 T - E@AK
HERZRINHE TEREHEEZE-_T ==
F+ A=+ BLEFERRBBINEE
i & 5548 495,783,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had subscribed HK$ denominated loan note (the
“LN2") of principal value of HK$20,000,000 issued by
an independent third party which is a private entity
established in the PRC, Yun Kang Data Technology
(Shanghai) Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in applying deep learning and artificial
intelligence to analyse the big data for application and
provide clinical diagnosis, with maturity period of three
years from dates of issue. LN2 bears fixed interest at 6%
per annum and is measured at amortised cost.

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
had subscribed HK$ denominated loan note (the
“LN3") of principal value of HK$30,000,000 issued by
an independent third party, D5 Investment B.V., which
is a private entity incorporated in the Netherlands and
principally engaged in storage service, with maturity
period of two years from dates of issue. LN3 bears fixed
interest at 3% per annum and is measured at amortised

cost.
Loan notes BEREE
Interest receivables JE U ) 2
Loss allowance EriE i E
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H
Less: current portion B BIHAEE &
Non-current portion JERNER B

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

(il BE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=Z+—BLEFE A&

SEEREBTERZR(ERERK2)])
K 4% {8 {6 /420,000,000 7T * A — R RAFH
RIYMALLERNBYE=ZH(EEEFELR
B(EB)BRAR  FERELFEEZR
A L% B8 AR 9 AT R EUE DA hn LA JE A 30 32 41
PRk B ) 37T WBETBHRHAIERE -
BERER2RE T F A E6%THEF B kiR
KA 2 o

(iVVBE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HBHILFEE &

SEEREBTEREZR(ERERI]) -
N%& B1E 430,000,000 BHBVLE=H
D5 Investment B.V. (E & f 5 53 fff 5 32 89 FL
AER FEREZFHERS) BT BHRR
BITAERMERH - EREEIIKL3I%
BEFMEFERNBLIRBEHEKLGTE -

2022 2021
—E-Z—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
50,000 77,000
1,021 3,627
(1,511) (2,390)
49,510 78,237
(49,510) (3,437)

— 74,800



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

21.LOAN NOTES (Continued) 21.ERFEE(E&)
Movement for impairment losses WEEEZS
2022 2021
s = —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 2,390 12,701
Derecognised upon disposals HEBKIEER (1,311) (12,112)
Provision made for the year FREE 432 1,801
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,511 2,390
The carrying amount of the loan notes approximates to its fair EXERENEOcEELIEARE FERKBRZ
value. Details of its credit risk are set out in note 6(c). ¥ 1% 1% 1t 7 B 5E6(c) ©
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is RBEH  ZAEERBRHBOAERERBRNER
the carrying amount of the loan notes. k-]
22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 2R2BAREFABEZNERMEE
2022 2021
—Eg=-= — T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FH& T
Listed securities: FHES
Equity securities — Listed in the United #zm#FH — REBR([EE]) £H
States (“U.S.”) 10,175 45,070
Equity securities — Listed in Hong Kong # %5 % — RN&B b ™ 19,582 16,868
29,757 61,938
Unlisted equity securities FELEMEREF 24,445 =
54,202 61,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

At the end of the reporting period, details of the Group’s major equity
securities are as follows:

Proportion
As at of investee’s
Stock name 31 December capital owned
BERREDLH
REAMR BW+=B=+-8H A
Listed equity securities
LHERES
Hong Kong
Tencent Holdings Limited (i) 2022 0.00%*
BARERARAR —E-—fF
2021 0.00%*
—E-—F
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (ii) 2022 0.00%*
MEBEEEZRERAA —Z-c-
2021 0.00%*
—E-—%
Semiconductor Manufacturing International 2022 0.00%*
Corporation (iii) ==
SRR ERERAEER DA 2021 0.00%*
—BE-—F
United States
ES
Readen Holding Corporation (iv) 2022 8.33%
-
2021 8.64%
—E-—F
Winchester Holding Group (v) 2022 1.05%
—F-
2021 1.05%
—E-—%
Unlisted equity security
FLETERES
LNPR Group Inc. ("LNPR™) (vi) 2022 7.02%
==
2021 —
—T-—F

* Less than 0.01%

Dividends of approximately HK$219,000 (2021: HK$171,000) was
recognised in consolidated profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Except for investment in LNPR Group Inc. is held by a subsidiary of

the Company, all of the above investments are directly held by the
Company.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

Cost

2
HK$000
FEL

13,796

9,052

500

1,040

6,106

6,106

12,046
12,046
20,966

20,966

24,445

Krat -

RBEHER AEEIEERITFOFBOT

Accumulated fair value

Net assets/ gains/(losses) on

(liabilities) investment recognised in

attributable to the profit and loss

Market value  the investment during the year
REEW REFERR

EEFE BEARIZRER

mEEE /(8 AREWE (BE)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FERT FEL
14,395 3,830 1,092
7,994 1,850 (1,400)
500 293 (143)
535 276 (512)
4,113 6,009 (477)
4,590 5,133 (1,515)
6,692 9,941 (3,346)
10,039 10,760 (2,008)
542 4 (34,490)
35,031 (19) (6,028)
24,445 (123) —

* £70.01%

REBEE-ZFE=-_=ZF+=-A=+—HLFE
5 P RE R AR B 49219,0008 T (=T = —4F
JL) °©

IO

:171,000%

B ¥LNPR Group Inc Wi ERARRINBARESE

Sy RRBEEFELIMERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (Continued)

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Tencent Holdings Limited, incorporated in Cayman lIslands, is
principally engaged in the provision of Value-added Service
(“VAS”), FinTech and Business Services and Online Advertising
services.

Alibaba Group Holding Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands,
provides the technology infrastructure and marketing reach
to help merchants, brands and other businesses to leverage
the power of new technology to engage with their users and
customers and operate in a more efficient way.

SMIC, incorporated in Cayman lIslands, principally provides its
customers with IC wafer foundry services and supporting services
covering technology nodes ranging from 0.35 micron to 14
nanometer based on different process technology platforms.

Readen Holding Corporation, incorporated in the United States, a
Venture Capital Corporation which is active in the Fintech, Online
Payment and E-commerce industries. |IT Star Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, holds this investment.

Winchester Holding Group, incorporated in the United States,
is organised for the purpose of property acquisitions. Initial
operations have included organisation and incorporation,
target market identification, car seller, marketing plans, capital
formation and property acquisitions.

LNPR Group Inc. incorporated in the U.S., which is principally
engaged in online education business. According to the
management of LNPR, they are seeking listing on “OTC Market
Group” in U.S. and already submitted the application to the
authority in the U.S.. IT Star Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, holds this investments.

As at 31 December 2022, no trading securities of the Group (2021:
HK$1,218,000) were pledged to a securities broker to secure margin
loan borrowed by the Group.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

Wi (&)

(i) BAERERAR RESHSEMKL =8
fRERHEERB(TVAS]) ERBRREER
BRGEESRE -

(i) WEEEBKEZERERAR RHASHEIMK
Mo REFP - mEREAMSERMARTERRE
URZHEFE  BEAUEDHRMHNE  BE
RAENEFPEY ITUESHNFTREL -

(iiiy FEBEE  RAASESIMRL TEATFIR
HER TR TR F & 00.35MK B4 KK
METHNRERTIREREERY -

(iv) Readen Holding Corporation * A 3 Bl sE A 32 -
ERESRER S| EINTREFTENRBRIZ
B - AAFH2ENE R RIT Star Limited#F
BZERE -

(v) Winchester Holding Group * R EBE Ak - A&
BEWEMMARE - VEEEREAZMEMATL -
BEREMmEHER - TEHE EHTE  BAEAK
WS -

(iv) LNPR Group Inc. AEBFEMKY TEREER
HEEK - BINPREEER MM EESKEE
BRSNS EE | LT WEREHE B
RTEHE - ARQAIH2EN B A AT Star Limited
BFAEZBERE -

f%*?__¢+ A=+—8 ZXA£EEHREXHE
EWTEHFEL(ZT ——4F 11,218,000/ 7T) * LB
REBEBEANRESER °

=

Annual Report 20225
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
Unlisted equity investments designated 15 F A A L ER HE 2@ W=7 Bk
at financial assets at FVTOCI ZEMEBEEMNLIMERKRE 24,903 25,545

On 7 December 2018, the Group had subscribed 20% equity
interest of an Anguilla incorporated private entity Perfect
Path, engaged in gold mining business at a consideration of
HK$18,500,000.

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of directors
and have control over Perfect Path. The directors of the
Company consider that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path, and it is therefore the unlisted
equity investments are designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI.

As of 31 December 2022, the fair value of the equity
investments was approximately HK$24,903,000 (2021:
HK$25,545,000).

As mentioned above, the Group neither has control nor
significant influence over Perfect Path and therefore in
assessing the fair value of Perfect Path at the end of each
reporting period, the Group would take into account the
investment strategy of the controlling shareholders of Perfect
Path as well as the determination of the valuation techniques
thereon.

Having carefully considered the uncertainties over the
economic and the operating environment where the gold
mine of Perfect Path locates and operates, the shareholders
of Perfect Path had reached the consensus, to proactively
approach potential buyer in realising the investment of
the gold mine development so benefited by the increasing
of gold price these years so that alternative investment
opportunities can be identified to reduce investment risk due
to uncertainties.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

RZZE—NF+_AtH AXEEBUAREB
18,500,000 TR BN T =N MK L L& E
B2Perfect Pathf20%A% 1 @ EH E LB K £
jﬂ% °

& B R £ E 35 BPerfect Pathth20%%& R # - A
o REAEOLHE  HRRIEFEETENAR
AR - 12 HPerfect Path - KA R EER AR
% B $fPerfect Pathi EE KT 2 ) - Bt IE £
MRIEREERTEAEAREREME2E KR

BE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—HB WRELE
B A 5 {8 49 424,903,000 T (8 = — F -
25,545,000/% 7T ) °

mE Pt - K & B $Perfect PathBf £ 32 i
#MESATESN AR EPerfect Path
REREHRNOAARER - NEE S E EPerfect
PathiZ % G SR AV 18 & SRS LA R R 0 i E Rl

.
TE °

RSB = EPerfect Path®d B BT 7E i & 2 48 ith 25
A R BB IRIBE M T T B & - Perfect
PathWBE R B ER L BREBBEE T UE
BAEFRIZNESERLEERNSBARE
Z UEREHMEEREERKE  ROTEERA
TERNRERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Market approach was used for valuation of the equity interest.
The inputs into the valuation model as at 31 December 2021

and 2022 were as follows:

Perfect Path
Perfect Path

Subscription date

R HE B

Total number of shares held

P 5 AR 1 48 28

Subscription price

REEE

Proportion of investee’s capital owned
WIRERAEANEALE

Dividend income received during the year
REZEANE W IR E A

Net assets attributable to the investment
REERKUEEFE

Fair value losses recognised during the year
TEERNBRNAAEEE

Discount of lack of control

R = 1 M 2 AT o

Gold resource contained
EENELER

% of gold price

HESERAS L

Cost of disposal

& B
Valuation methodology
(REDIDZS

Fair value performed by:

NI EFFHEE

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
=2

7 December 2018
—E-NF+=ZA+tA
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,000 7T
20.00%

20.00%

HK$25,219,000
25,219,000 7T
(HK$642,000)

(642,000 7t)

20%

20%

8.6 ton

8.6Ii7

8.80%

8.80%

0.3% of fair value

of the equity interest
RN L EH0.3%
Market Approach

%A

Access Partner Professional
Services Limited
TREZEXRBER AR

HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

REMSEEERAER R_T_—FR_F
T T A=t —HREREZBAENAT

2021
—E-—fF

7 December 2018
—E-NF+=ZAtH
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,0005% 7T
20.00%

20.00%

HK$25,886,000
25,886,000/% 7T
(HK$5,055,000)
(5,055,000 7t)

20%

20%

8.6 ton

8.6/1F

7.00%

7.00%

0.3% of fair value

of the equity interest
IR 70 1E#0.3%
Market Approach

%%

Access Partner Professional
Services Limited
TRBEHEXREARAQA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at 0%
to 0.01% (2021: 0% to 0.01%) per annum and repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of
amounts due from securities brokers. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

Amounts due to securities brokers represent credit facility
provided by securities brokers, bearing interest at Nil (2021:
10.25%) per annum and repayable on demand. No ageing
analysis is disclosed in respect of amounts due to securities
brokers. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
Group’s business nature.

Other payables and accruals
Unclaimed dividend payables

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

Hit B Rt E A
frl 7R <8 XA FE 1 B B

EBUREABLRARTR/RX S LHREMFRERE
FRENER  ER/EER  R0%E0.01%(=
T —F 0%E0.01% NFRNXFERNE - X
BREREER  YENBEESQLCRARER
RO - ARAREZTRR  AERAKENER
HE - RESMALEBRIMEE -

ERBHFEETBAEFELRHENEERE -
BE(ZT - —4F :10.25% ) WEMRFEF &
WEREKEE UERENESFCLRNERE
RN - ARAEERE  BERAEEME
BHE  RESITUEEINMEE -

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
1,203 2,062

4 4

1,207 2,066



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had two (2021: five)
promissory notes outstanding to two (2021: four) individuals
who are independent parties to the Group with an aggregated
principal value of HK$13,500,000 (2021: HK$19,920,000).
These promissory notes bear interest at rates ranging from
6.5% to 8% (2021: 6.5% to 8%) per annum and are due for
repayments ranging from 15th months to 27th months (2021:
1st month to 39th months) at the end of Reporting Period.

On initial recognition, the fair value of promissory notes
issued by the Company were determined based on the
present value of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted at rates ranging from 6.19% to 8% per annum. The
discount rates are determined with reference to the yield rate
with credit rating and duration similar to the promissory notes.

The details of the promissory notes for the year are set out

below:

At 1 January Hn—HA—H
Imputed interest charged MR EETN S
Redemption during the year FRED

Interest paid during the year FREZATEAHE
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H

Less: Amount due within one year
classified as current liabilities mE A A

Amount due over one year classified as RN — %3 HHNELE - DEA

FRBAE

non-current liabilities

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$357,785,000 (2021:
HK$312,328,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

R —FRBHANERE

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

RZEBE-ZZF+_A=+—HBH X2 BEME
(ZE-—F ORA)BINEAEBHALTHR
M(ZEZ—F: AN AEEANE K84
£ 13,500,000 jt (= T — — 4 : 19,920,0008
TT) c RIMEBKR » ZEAMNERN F6.5%E8%
(ZZ=—F :6.5%28%) FFA R E - EXE
HANF15@AE2TEAAR(ZE-—F 1@AAZE
39fE A) °

VIR ERE AR A BETHNANEARBRER
NF6.19%E8%FF EMBHRKBEEMES L
MR EET - WRE2ZHEUANENEEF
AR AU s K EE o

RERNBBEANENFBHINET :

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
20,223 20,144
1,964 1,456
(6,420) -
(1,605) (1,377)
14,162 20,223
A

(662) (6,723)
13,500 13,500

RBEERAR AEBARAPABEAEBFED
357,785,000/8 ;o (=& = — 4F : 312,328,000 %
7C) AT A R SROE ) o p 70 R SRR B AR B9 T ]
BRI AELBRBBERRBECHAEE -
AERBNOREERATAER ML -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
1 January 2021
Issue of shares on placement (note i)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Issue of shares on placement (note ii)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2022

Note:

Number of shares Amount
ROEE &8
HK$°000
FHET
EE
RZBZ_—F—HA—R ZT=Z—
F+ZA=+—H -ZF==
—B—Bk_ZE-_—_%+—_H
=+—AXNEREMEO0
BT E AR 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
ERITRBE :
RZE-_—F—A—HHNEKREE
0.1 7oy & i AR 359,726,850 35,973
i & B B 1T IR A (A 22i) 71,945,370 7,194
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HAKZ=ZZE
T ZF—A—BMNB8REBENNE
TCHY & AR 431,672,220 43,167
fic & B 31T IR 19 (M7 aZii) 86,334,444 8,634
RZTEZZF+=ZA=+—8H
FREE0.178 T /Y XL i AR 518,006,664 51,801

At -

(i) On 27 May 2021, the Company and a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement in respect of the placement of 71,945,370
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.215 per share
under general mandate, to not less than six placees who are
independent third parties to the Group (the “Placement A”). The
Placement A was completed on 17 June 2021.

The net proceeds from the Placement A amounted to
approximately HK$15,351,000 after deducting expense of
approximately HK$117,000, approximately HK$7,194,000 and
HK$8,157,000 were credited to share capital and share premium
respectively upon the issue of the new shares. The anticipated
net proceeds from the Placement A would be utilised for
investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5,500,000, repayment of short
term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$6,800,000 and the remaining balance would be
used as the Group’s general working capital.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

)

RZFE-—FREA=-+tH AQAFHEEERE
ANEERE  AREERATORABEEA (A
AEEBIE=F)RE—REEAERKR0.2157%
LB EL&71,945,370 SR EE0.178 T 38
B(TAREE AL - REEFBAR T =Z—F <A
+EAEK -

B F 117,000 7% 7T % - B2 & = HART 18 5K
TH)F B 49 515,351,000 70 * RETAREE1TR - &
7,194,000% 7T . 8,157,000 7T 9 Bl 5 A B A& &
e msEE - Bl EFHEARBAMGRIBFEY B8
#75,500,0008 T AR L K SKIE LT ES K
& - #E 496,800,000/ T AR EBERBHERK
ME HBRTEHBARAEE —REEEARN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note: (Continued)

(i) On 13 June 2022, the Company and a placing agent (“Placing
Agent B”) entered into a placing agreement (“Placing Agreement
B”) in respect of the placement of 86,334,444 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.218 per share under general
mandate, to not less than six placees who are independent third
parties to the Group (the “Placement B”). On 4 July 2022, the
Company and Placing Agent B entered into a supplementary
placing agreement to (i) extend the long stop date of the Placing
Agreement B; (ii) extend the expiry date to procure placees under
the Placing Agreement B; and (iii) revise the placing price from
HK$0.218 per share to HK$0.264 per share. The Placement B
was completed on 19 July 2022.

The net proceeds from the Placement B amounted to
approximately HK$22,619,000 after deducting expense of
approximately HK$173,000, approximately HK$8,634,000 and
HK$13,985,000 were credited to share capital and share premium
respectively upon the issue of the new shares. The anticipated
net proceeds from the Placement B would be utilised for
investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$10,000,000, repayment of short
term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$6,100,000 and the remaining balance would be
used as the Group’s general working capital.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2022, 87.55% (2021:
74.95%) of the shares were in public hands.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

Hrat - (%)

(i) R-BE-—EXA+=0 A&EEERERE ([
EREBDAIVEERE(ESHEB]) - WA A
AT RANEEREA(BAEEBIE=H)R
B — MR E A FR0.2187 T (B 15 A 586,334,444
BREBRBEIAATH L AR ([REESEB]) - N
T FLAMA AARHEEESREBT M H
EERE  WOERESHHEBNLLLE : (ii)iR
BEREH#EBERERAR AEm B « Kii)iSi
EEKXB0218EB TERFARZ0.264F TEMK - B2
EZEEBR-_ZE-_—_F+A+NABZEK-

A0 B B X 49173,0005%8 Tt % - R & = EBAT 13
FRIE R FE#) /522,619,000 7T 0 TR BT
8,634,000 Jt & 13,985,000 7T 7 Bl 5F A f% 74N £2
B (8 - iR BEEBEHMERBFESD  L5FE
#97/10,000,00078 T AR £ &I LT E 5
& - HE 46,100,000 T AR EEEHER
RFE B TAEBEARAEE —REEER -

66 1B IR A AR 9 B 1R 5 B AE 8 7 S 35 R
EHBETE REAEBENBREE ¥R
B R AR S 40 R SR I 9R - A SR B 0 I A A
e B SR 48 35 0 T 6 T RLAR o

AEERARBREERESKAREGHEEABERD
Bk KEBZEAERE AEESEALTR
B BIHBROEBROLEEARETHES B
EEEEHIHEEENREER @ REHEE
BREALEE REE-_Z-_—_FR=-_ZT=-_—FfF
TZA=+—HLEFER  EREANER K
REEFIWEELERMES -

ME— N HIEERERA  REBMMAKZHE
EHXpEmHt  HEARFEREZL AR
DHI25% - NEBFT AWEIRMDBEELERR
RRERENEARGESZNRE  HERS
FHRFEFE2%MBRE - R_E-_—_F+=A8
=+—H 87.55% (= = — 4 :74.95%) A9 I&
MABAREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Note
M &t
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -BERKE
Rights-of-use assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries M EBARIKE
Loan notes ERERE
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments Re R TE A FE
Loan notes EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL ﬁg; EREZRIEZ SR
B E
Financial assets at FVTOCI mARERE M2 E RS
XYL
Due from securities brokers JE U 35 5 48 40 5K 1B
Amount due from a subsidiary & W — 80 Y /88 x R) kIR
Bank balances AT 4 R
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to securities brokers JE < 78 548 42 SR IH
Other payables and accruals HtmEN R RETER
Lease liabilities EN-S=K
Promissory notes AR
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities @ 8 E R A B A &
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Promissory notes Z SN
NET ASSETS EEFE
Capital and reserves EXRF#E
Share capital LN 29
Reserves A (a)
TOTAL EQUITY R R
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors JrA g =
on 31 March 2023. il

Chau Wai Hing

R
Director

EF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

o

2022

-
HK$°000
BT

202

27

229

371
18,996

26,816

24,903
2,224
51,656
2,046

127,012

1,207
208

662
2,077
124,935

125,164

13,500
13,500
111,664
51,801
59,863

111,664

486

27
19,070
19,584
282
1,250
61,938
25,545
145
49,282
1,635
140,077
1,087
2,066
282
6,723
10,158
129,919
149,503
208
13,500
13,708

135,795

43,167
92,628

135,795

EFE=ZA=tT - HESEFSHERRE

Wu Ming Gai
[k R e
Director

EF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes:

(a) Movements in Company’s reserves

Share
premium
31(b)(i)
% E
M ZE31(b)(i)
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZZT-_-%—-HA—H 41,313
Loss and total comprehensive expenses & A 12 & 2 {37 4%
for the year —
Issue of shares on placement (note 29) 1 B & B 2 17 ) (f73229) 8,274
Cost of issuing new shares under BEREETHR KK
placement (note 29) (Hfi229) (117)
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-—%+-A=+-H
1 January 2022 k—_ZT-_-%—H—H 49,470
Loss and total comprehensive FRNEBERZERS
expenses for the year kS =
Issue of shares on placement (note 29) R L& B & 1T I 17 (477229) 14,158
Cost of issuing new shares under BEREETHR KK
placement (note 29) (Hfi229) (173)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—%+=-fA=+—H 63,455

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium represents the amount by which
the issue price of shares exceeds the par value of
those shares and is distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

Bat -

(a) AATEBED

Financial
assets at
Contributed FVTOCI
surplus reserve  Accumulated
31(b)(ii) 31(b)(iii) losses Total
RAREREM
2EMESRZ
BERREY SREERA
FHEE31(b)(i)) B EE31(b)(iii) 2 ER o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TET TR TET
107,918 12,100 (42,055) 119,276
— (5,055) (29,750) (34,805)
— — — 8,274
— — — (117)
107,918 7,045 (71,805) 92,628
— (642) (46,108) (46,750)
— — — 14,158
— — — (173)
107,918 6,403 (117,913) 59,863

AEBFBENERAMEEDESRABa A
MEEREREGAREEH RN R -

RpaBERNETEBLZSERN 2
HEZEHE AAIDKTFTARABRER
BREBZZESRKEBHRER AQF
ARERREBEFRERPEERLDH
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

(a) The contributed surplus of the Company arose
as a result of the capital reorganisation that the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company was reduced
to nil and the credit arising from such reduction
be transferred to an existing account of the
Company designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company. Thereafter, the amount
approximately HK$200.4 million standing to the
credit of the contributed surplus account of the
Company was applied in full towards offsetting
the entire amount of the accumulated losses of
the Company; and

(b) the par value of each of the issued shares was
reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 per issued
share by the cancellation of the paid up share
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.90
per issued share by way of a reduction of capital,
such that the par value of the issued Shares
was reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising
from the Capital Reduction was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company
within the meaning of the Companies Act and
be applied for such purposes as permitted by
all applicable laws and the Memorandum of
Continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company
and as the Board considers appropriate.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve represents
the cumulative net change in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4(f) to
the consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

(a)

(b)

E//N

ARBEHEBGARAEAE =
B ARBIRGEERZ2IHMER
CHEHRET Wi EBEIRATE
EZERERERTARIRAAER
BHEZARRRABERE - £ -
ARG EHBGBEZERSEY
2004 B BATRARBHEHEAQA
MEPRFHBESE &

FHIRBRATR  FHEAQRFTHRE
BAREGRKREZEITRMOE T+ #
BRERITROEEHEREET
B% 13 1.007% 7T 8% £ 0.10%8 7T+ &
EBTRHOEERZSF/R0.105
T RARBIRFTE S 2 EIRERE
RAEEENARABEHBEE -
VYEARMBERAZEZEREEKRNA
RARRMAIAHTFRESSRAE
EMAR -

AEREtE2AERIIEZERME

ERBRARREREA VB RERME4HA
HRERTARBNEFBREERRRE
HAKANBRBERENRIAERTED
R e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the Group’s net assets of approximately HK$118,301,000
(2021: HK$144,403,000) divided by the Company’'s ordinary
shares in issue of 518,006,664 (2021: 431,672,220) as at 31
December 2022.

The Company had acquired 28,600,000 shares of
RHC, which shares are listed in the U.S., with fair
value of approximately HK$12,046,000 as at the date
of acquisition by satisfying a loan note with fair value
of approximately HK$23,176,000 as at the date of
its deemed disposal (being the date of acquisition
of 28,600,000 shares of RHC), resulting a loss on
deemed disposal by approximately HK$10,507,000
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group had subscribed LN3, with principal
value of HK$30,000,000. The subscription of LN3
was satisfied by a loan note with fair value of
approximately HK$34,623,000 as at the date of its
deemed disposal (being the date of subscription
of LN3), resulting in a loss on deemed disposal
by approximately HK$3,383,000 recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021.

As disclosed in notes 21(ii) and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company had
acquired 3,369,645 shares of LNPR, which shares
are unlisted equity, with fair value of approximately
HK$24,445,000 as at the date of acquisition by
satisfying LN1 with fair value of approximately
HK$30,228,000 as at the date of its deemed disposal
(being the date of acquisition of 3,369,645 shares
of LNPR), resulting a loss on deemed disposal by
approximately HK$5,783,000 recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

BREEFENERERBRAEBR ZEEFED
118,301,000 7T (= & — — 4 : 144,403,000;8
T)BRAARG ZEZZF+A=+—HH
518,006,664 1% ( — & — — 4 : 431,672,220/%) &
BT EAR

KA A2 Y #BRHCH 28,600,000 f% A%
B HEBRGRERET  AnBERKE
H H 49 512,046,00058 7T © 5 3\ A5 E
ERER(EAAERRELESHE - /&
I BERHCH) 28,600,000 % f% 17 & A 49 A&
23,176,000 87L)  EFREE T ——
FH+_A=+—BLEFERBREREPRE
AR 1E H & A E518 910,507,000/ T ©

AEBEEREERZEI K& A
30,000,000 7T - RBERZEIUNE
REREAABERESELEBRS
BRBERZEIE B4 534,623,000
TT)ERM  BHREE—_ZTE-_—F+_A4
St HALEFEREEBETRERRE
i & Y 748 493,383,000 7T ©

AN AR A B K 3R R M RE 21 (i) R 22 FT #
0 A2 A E KELNPREY 3,369,645 %
R (ERDAFELMET  RKERHS
B R (B4 524,445,000 7T) * H R A
BENERZEB1I(EARBERGIEHRER
5 BD U BELNPR#Y 3,369,645 % i 1) &
H 49/430,228,000/87T) r BEREZEZ
T+ _fF=+—HIEENER
BR AR RE SR AR VE & /Y /B 18 495,783,000

JT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-F-_-_F+-A=1+—ALFE

33.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

BVEEHRERERMT(E)

(b) EBEEHELENEBNHK

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,

TRAAGERRERHELNABEEF
B ERASKIRSEY KEBMELD
MEEERERECKIARKRRASRELSS

including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

PHBRERENZETRE °

RAEBEGARERERDBRRARER

1 January Interest 31 December

2022 Cash flows Addition charges 2022

—BC-CF —BC-CF

-A—-8 RemE "B FMERX +t=A=+-H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

TR TER TER TERT TR

Lease liabilities (note 19(b)) M EEE(Hi£19(b)) 490 (300) - 18 208
Promissory notes (note 27) &N Z(f:227) 20,223 (8,025) - 1,964 14,162
20,713 (8,325) — 1,982 14,370

1 January Interest 31 December

2021 Cash flows Addition charges 2021

—E-—F —E-—&

—A—H Reng WE MERY +ZA=1+—-8H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THET TER TER

Lease liabilities (note 19(b)) T & & E(#£19b)) 208 (300) 569 13 490
Promissory notes (note 27) &N Z (f5#27) 20,144 (1,377) - 1,456 20,223
20,352 (1,677) 569 1,469 20,713

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—Z-—&F#4+-_F=+—HIFE

33.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT BV.EERERERME (F)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEREREUAE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash FelReRnsRTEHEENBENT -

flows for lease comprise the following:

2022 2021
—E—C_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Within operating cash flows KEBRESREN 18 13
Within financing cash flows MERERENR 282 287
300 300
These amounts relate to the following: ZECHENTEEARA :
2022 2021
—E-& T4
HK$°000 HK$°000
FER F&T
Lease rental paid EHE2 300 300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

(a) On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an (@) RZZE—XRE-A-t+hIB ARAFEFEE

investment management agreement (“Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to act as
the investment manager of the Company and to provide
investment management services to the Company for a
period of two years commencing from 1 March 2016 and
expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental investment management agreement
(“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect from
1 January 2017, management fees as set out in the
Investment Management Agreement shall be changed
from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000 to 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month with an
annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as above changed,
all other terms and conditions set forth in the Investment
Management Agreement shall remain unchanged, in full
force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to renew
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

On 28 February 2019 and 28 August 2019, the Company
entered into renewal agreements with Tiger Securities
respectively, to renew the investment management
services period from 28 February 2019 to 31 August 2019
and further extended to 29 February 2020.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

BEEEEREAERAA(FEEESDIT
REEEHR((REEERZE]D Bt - F
EEFCRRABEAARARRIZEESE AN
MARDNBREBEEETERS AT —X
FZA—HRAHMEFE_Z-—NF=A
—+NAHBE®-

REREEEGSE FTRIEHFUVEEAR
AEHEF-—EANERBREPHNEERE
FEEBFOS%NCERE  FHMEFLERA
1,800,000/% 7T °

T—XNE+—A=-+WHA  r ARAREZFK
R AU RREE R (AR RE
EBpzl) Bt @Bm-_T—+tF—AF—H
BORETEREAMSCEREBEALA
AEH F—EAAMNEREEFNEEFERT
BHF05% 52T LR A1,800,000%
T WARRREH E—EANERER T
MEBEFEAEEF1% BEHEE2FLRA
2,980,000/ 7t  Br Lali 2 BhHN B E 1B
BN 2B B GERRIG GG gET
g2 AEF+RBMAORER-

i
I

3

RZZE—N\F_A-+N\H ARRHEZKE
BHAVEE NS BEEKEEERSE M
BT N\FZAZ+N\BEZZT—NF=
AZ+NH-

RZE—NF_A=-_F+NBEZ=ZZ—AFN
RZ+NB ARSI ERZESFFVLE
Bz EERNEEERSHEB=-Z=—N
F_A-_+N \BE-_ZE—AFENA=+—H
WiE—FSEHE T _TFEF_H -+ N8 -



(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

With effective from 1 September 2019, management fee
to Tiger Securities shall be changed from 1% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account of
the Company of the preceding month to 0.8% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account
of the Company of the preceding month with unchanged
annual cap at HK$2,980,000.

On 28 February 2020, 7 December 2020, 16 December
2021 and 21 November 2022, the Company entered
into several renewal agreements with Tiger Securities
respectively, to renew the investment management
services period to 31 August 2023 and change the annual
cap to HK$660,000.

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the Company,
is a director and responsible officer of Tiger Securities.

The management fees and incentive fee paid and payable
to Tiger Securities are as follows:

Tiger Securities: RERF
Management fees EBB

The above management fees paid or payable to Tiger
Securities are continuing connected transactions (“CCT”)
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but
regarded as de minimis transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules as the CCT had fulfill the
relevant requirements.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors is disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+—BHILFE

(a) (&)

BE_Z-NEhLA— A ZTEELFNEE
BEREAL—EAAXQAAEREERREE
FEMNI%ER B LE—BEAARRBIEEEE
PEEFEMNIS%  2FLERTE DA
2,980,000 JT °

%
[
el

T_ZF_A-_+/\B ZE_ZFF
+-A+8 -—E-—&E+-A+<AR—
T —_F+—A=-+—8 AARDHFIESE
ERFI VA TESE G FTEKEEER
BHAE-ZT-_=FNA=+—H ¥EXK
24 R £660,000/8 T °

RARRTEFNHRELERTERESFNE
ERBEAR -

ENERENFEERSNERERESHT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —EFEZ—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
535 1,309

e NKENERESFNEREERB(LE™
RADEUAEMAENFBEBER 5 ([H
BRER ] AM - REBECEWRIDE
14A.76(1N)fE - BN EBEXZ N EEBR
E R EERANAERERRKFNR
5 o

AEBI2EEABNTFHASES MBREK

M1 BRERNARARITEEIANE
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z__F+-_A=+—HILFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 i

and 2021 are as follows:

Place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation
il PR S AL 3L it 2

IT Star Limited*

IT Star Limited* RBEXHS
Studio V Limited* Hong Kong
Studio V Limited* BB

* Shares held directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the end

of the Reporting Period.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has entered
into a non legally binding memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) with an asset manager company (the “Asset
Manager”) which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of one
of the biggest global investment management organisation
and holds asset management license in Hong Kong. Pursuant
to the MOU, the Company and the Asset Manager wish to
explore the feasibility of a strategic collaboration in relation

British Virgin Islands

TR RCECHF+-A=+—BZZXE
MERRFBENT :
Principal activities Particulars of
and place of issued share
operation capital Interest held
TEXEBREXBH BRIARAFE Pz
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*
in Hong Kong of US$1
REER/BE 1REE1ET
2 BB
Investment holding in HK$10,000 100%* 100%*
Hong Kong
REER BB 10,0007 7T

*

JiNE: 3
%

o

e =
BEALD
m—
Z:ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ?(ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%m%)
cREHEREE  ARRBREETEAR
BIERIRATITE -
BABEAETFRAEARANKETE
EaFEHI N

BEER
B IR T B K
mMEEE
LA AT 3 s A 28 I

RABEEFAZEMD -

RRZE2ENBEL

REREE -

Rz

HIR  ZW B AR EETEMETR

g

=K
[

Hig AEEREEERBARB(EEE
: E?%%IT%“?KEEPZ*Z%?%‘E%E%%
CRIMARERORS
CREBREBEE

At

to the proposed strategic collaboration whereby the Asset
Manager would assume the investment management of the
Company as well as any proposed framework and operating
arrangements. Details of above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 January 2023.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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37.

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% (2021: 5%) of the salaries and wages,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2021: HK$30,000) and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2023.

37.

38.

39.

e ISR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE
XAREE
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H  AEEVTHELM
BAIARBE(ZZ_—F: &) -

B IR E A5 S
AEBMBREBCGAHIMERTESHEEN AT ELE
BETHRY —EHRHMEABETE (MBSt
) AREERFHRFENS» (ZT=Z—F ¢
5%)maafEE &Ik - & A8 B A EBL30,000
B (ZT - —4 :30,000087T) A LR - AEH
HENEEEERES -

RERTHEEMBRR

EEER _ZE_=F=-A=+—HHKLEREEZ
THRAVHERE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFMBHRE

Results:
Loss profit attributable to owners of
the Company

Assets and liabilities:
Current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ funds

¥E
ARARHEEAELEE

%A

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

2018
—E-NF
HK$°000
TAERT

(78,458)

2018
—E-N\F
HK$°000
TAERT

151,217

196,846

41,535

61,455

135,391

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-HLEE

2019 2020 2021
—T-NEF ZE-TF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(35,361) (4,166) (28,643)

Year ended 31 December

BEt_A=t—HIEE

2019 2020 2021
—T-NEF ZT-TF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
110,423 138,921 92,982
189,821 185,535 168,269
3,977 2,865 10,158
24,105 22,785 23,866
165,716 162,750 144,403

2022
—E-C

HK$’000

FERT

(48,079)

2022
—E-C

HK$’000

FER

133,676

133,878

2,077

15,577

118,301
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